
 

w w w . f i r s t 5 c o c o . o r g  
4 0 0 5  P o r t  C h i c a g o  H w y . ,  S t e .  1 2 0 ,  C o n c o r d ,  C A  9 4 5 2 0  

 
 

Memo   
To: Commission Members 

From: Alexander Khu  

Re: Special November 14, 2022 Commission Meeting 

VIRTUAL MEETING pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e) and in accordance with the Contra Costa County 
Health Officer’s recommendation for virtual meetings and social distancing. 

 
Persons who wish to address the Commission during public comment or with respect to an item on the agenda may call 
in during the meeting by dialing 669-444-9171 or 669-900-6833 or use the “raise your hand” feature in the Zoom app. 

 
Virtual Webinar Information: 

Please click the link below to join the webinar: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85624917116?pwd=ZUVGWlFvaEpMaXVIY1l3cml3eDBMdz09  

Webinar ID: 856 2491 7116 
Passcode: 237961 

 
The Commission Chair may reduce or eliminate the amount of time allotted to read comments at the beginning of each 

item or public comment period depending on the number of comments and the business of the day. Your patience is 
appreciated. 

 

Kind Regards, 

 

Alexander Khu, Executive Assistant, First 5 Contra Costa 
First 5 Contra Costa 
www.First5coco.org 
 

http://www.first5coco.org/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85624917116?pwd=ZUVGWlFvaEpMaXVIY1l3cml3eDBMdz09




   

Special Commission Meeting AGENDA 
Monday November 14, 2022 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 4005 Port Chicago Highway, Suite 120, Concord, CA 94520 • 925.771.7300 • fax 925.771.6083 • www.first5coco.org 

Special Commission Meeting  
A G E N D A  

Monday, November 14, 2022, 5:00 pm 
VIRTUAL MEETING pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e) and in accordance with the Contra Costa County Health 

Officer’s recommendation for virtual meetings and social distancing. 
Persons who wish to address the Commission during public comment or with respect to an item on the agenda may call in during 

the meeting by dialing 669-444-9171 or 669-900-6833 or use the “raise your hand” feature in the Zoom app. 
Virtual Webinar Information: 

Please click the link below to join the webinar: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85624917116?pwd=ZUVGWlFvaEpMaXVIY1l3cml3eDBMdz09  

Webinar ID: 856 2491 7116 
Passcode: 237961 

 
The Commission Chair may reduce or eliminate the amount of time allotted to read comments at the beginning of each item or public comment period depending on 

the number of comments and the business of the day. Your patience is appreciated. 
1.0 Call to Order and Roll Call  

2.0 Public Comment  
The public may comment on any item of public interest within the jurisdiction of the First 5 Contra Costa Children and 
Families Commission.  In accordance with the Brown Act, if a member of the public addresses an item not on the posted 
agenda, no response, discussion, or action on the item may occur. 

 

3.0 Approve the minutes from the Special October 17, 2022 Commission Meeting. Action 

4.0 Approval of Consent Calendar 
A Commissioner or member of the public may ask that any of the following consent items be removed from the 
consent calendar for consideration under Item 4. 
 

Action 

 4.1 Approve the Contracts Docket.  

  4.1.1 APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Executive Director or her designee to execute a 
contract with Eide Bailly, LLP to provide audit services for fiscal years ended June 
30, 2023 and June 30, 2024 in an amount not to exceed $54,000 for term January 
1, 2023 to December 31, 2024. FY2022-23 budget line: ($26,000 year-1), ($28,000 
year-2) Administrative Expense: Professional Services ($516,000).  Funded 100% 
Prop 10 funding. 

 

 4.2 Approve the Grants Docket.  

  4.2.1 APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Executive Director, or her designee, to apply for and, 
if awarded, execute a grant agreement with City of Concord in an amount up to 
$2,000,000 for American Rescue Plan Act for non-profit organizations to provide 
one-time Covid Relief Stipends to Early Childhood Education (ECE) teachers who 
work in the ECE field in the city of Concord.  FY2022-23 budget line: Early Childhood 
Education Initiative: Early Learning Quality ($539,606).  Funded100% City of 
Concord. 

 

  4.2.2 APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Executive Director, or her designee, to execute an 
agreement with Contra Costa Office of Education for a $251,119 grant to provide 
California State Preschool Program (CSPP) Quality Rating and Improvement System 
(QRIS) Block Grant coaching and assessment services to state funded preschool 
programs for term July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023.  FY2022-23 budget line: Early 
Childhood Education Initiative:  Early Learning Quality ($539,606).  Funded 100% 
Contra Costa County Office of Education. 

 

  4.2.3 APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Executive Director, or her designee, to execute an 
agreement with Contra Costa Office of Education for a $210, 510 grant to provide 
Quality Counts California (QCC), Quality Rating and Improvement System (QRIS) 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85624917116?pwd=ZUVGWlFvaEpMaXVIY1l3cml3eDBMdz09


   

Special Commission Meeting AGENDA 
Monday November 14, 2022 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 4005 Port Chicago Highway, Suite 120, Concord, CA 94520 • 925.771.7300 • fax 925.771.6083 • www.first5coco.org 

Block Grant coaching and assessment services to family childcare homes and 
private centers for term July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023.  FY2022-23 budget line: Early 
Childhood Education Initiative:  Early Learning Quality ($539,606).  Funded 100% 
Contra Costa County Office of Education.   

  4.2.4 APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Executive Director, or her designee, to apply for and, 
accept grant funding from Sunlight Giving, in an amount not to exceed $50,000 to 
support Community Engagement’s community organizing, parent leadership and 
advocacy for term December 1, 2022 to December 1, 2023. FY2022-23 budget line: 
Stakeholder Engagement and Policy Advocacy: Community Engagement 
($238,119). Funded 100% Sunlight Giving.   

 

  4.2.5 APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Executive Director, or her designee, to execute an 
agreement with Contra Costa County Office of Education for a grant, in an amount 
not to exceed $10,000, to implement the Contra Costa County Professional 
Development Program (PDP) for term July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023.  FY2022-23 
budget line: Early Childhood Education Initiative: Workforce Development 
($438,929). Funded 100% Contra Costa County Office of Education. 

 

 4.3 Accept the 4th Quarter Financial Report of FY 2021-2022  

 4.4 Accept the First 5 Contra Costa October 2022 Program Reports.  

 4.5 CONSIDER adopting a resolution authorizing First 5 Contra Costa to conduct 
teleconference meetings pursuant to Government Code section 54953 (e) and make 
related findings. 

 

5.0 CONSIDER for discussion any items removed from the Consent Calendar.  

6.0 Consider accepting the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Financial Audit Action 

 6.1 (a) Public Hearing on the First 5 Contra Costa’s Annual Financial Audit for Fiscal Year 2021-
2022 
(b) Adopt the Annual Financial Audit for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 

 

7.0 Annual Report to First 5 California for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 
(a) Public Hearing on the First 5 Contra Costa’s Annual Report for FY 2021-2022 
(b) Adopt the Annual Report to First 5 California for FY 2021-2022 

Action 

9.0 Communications:   

 - EdSource Published Op-Ed: Inflation Reduction Act Left Children and Families Behind  
Co-authored by Dr. Ruth Fernández, Executive Director, First 5 Contra Costa and            
Dr. Savitha Moorthy, Executive Director at Tandem Partners in Early Learning. 

 

10.0 Commissioner F.Y.I. Updates   

11.0 Adjourn   
 
The First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission will provide reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities planning to participate in Commission 
meetings who contact the Commission’s offices, at least 48 hours before the meeting, at (925) 771-7300. 
 
Any disclosable public records related to an open session item on a regular meeting agenda and distributed by the First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families 
Commission to a majority of members of the First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission less than 96 hours prior to that meeting are available for public 
inspection at 4005 Port Chicago Highway, Suite 120, Concord, CA 94520 during normal business hours. 
 
In consideration of those who may suffer from chemical sensitivities or who may have allergic reactions to heavy scents, First 5 Contra Costa requests that staff and 
visitors refrain from wearing perfume, cologne, or the use of strongly scented products in the work place.  We thank you for your consideration of others. 

 



 
 
 
 

November 14, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3.0 
 

Approve the minutes from the Special October 17, 2022 Commission 
Meeting 

 
 





   

Special Commission Meeting MINUTES 
Page 1 of 5 

 
 4005 Port Chicago Highway, Suite 120, Concord, CA 94520 •  925.771.7300  •  fax 925.771.6083  •  www.first5coco.org 

Special Commission Meeting  
M I N U T E S  

Monday, October 17, 2022, 6:00 pm 
 

1.0 Call to Order and Roll Call  
 Chairwoman Dr. Rocio Hernandez called the special meeting of the Commission @ 6:07 PM. 

Due to COVID-19, the meeting was held on a web-based platform. 
 

Commissioners present during roll call were: 
District 1:  Dr. Rocio Hernandez 
District 2:  Marilyn Cachola Lucey 
District 2 Alternate:  Srividya Iyengar 
District 3:  Lee Ross 
District 4:  Matt Regan 
District 4 Alternate:  Gareth Ashley 
District 5:  John Jones 
Board of Supervisors:  Diane Burgis 
Health Services:  Dr. Ori Tzvieli 
EHSD:  Dr. Marla Stuart 
Children & Families Services:  Kathy Marsh 
 
Commissions who were not present during roll call were: 
District 1 Alternate:  Genoveva Garcia Calloway 
District 3 Alternate:  Rhoda Butler 
Board of Supervisors Alternate:  Candace Andersen 
Health Services Alternate:  Dr. Sefanit F. Mekuria 
Children & Families Services Alternate:  Roslyn Gentry 

 
The Chair also welcomed CSB Manager Nicholas Bryant who is visiting the meeting.  Dr. Marla Stuart informed 
the Commission that Nicholas will be appointed to be her Alternate Commission Member for EHSD. 
 

2.0 Public Comment  
 No public comment. 

 
3.0 Approval of Consent Calendar 
 Item 3.1 was removed from the consent calendar. 

 
Matt Regan made a move seconded by Dr. Ori to approve the remaining items on the Consent Calendar. 
 

Roll call of vote: 
District 1:  Dr. Rocio Hernandez - Yes 
District 2:  Marilyn Cachola Lucey - Yes 
District 3:  Lee Ross - Yes 
District 4:  Matt Regan - Yes 
District 5:  John Jones - Yes 
Board of Supervisors:  Diane Burgis - Yes 
Health Services:  Dr. Ori Tzvieli - Yes 



   

Special Commission Meeting MINUTES 
Page 2 of 5 

 
 4005 Port Chicago Highway, Suite 120, Concord, CA 94520 •  925.771.7300  •  fax 925.771.6083  •  www.first5coco.org 

EHSD:  Dr. Marla Stuart - Yes 
Children & Families Services:  Kathy Marsh – Yes 
 
Nos:  NONE 
Abstain:  NONE 
Absent:  District 1 Alternate:  Genoveva Garcia Calloway; District 3 Alternate:  Rhoda Butler; Board of 
Supervisors Alternate Candace Andersen; Health Services Alternate:  Dr. Sefanit F. Mekuria; Children & 
Families Services Alternate:  Roslyn Gentry 
 

The remaining consent calendar APPROVED. 
  
4.0 CONSIDER for discussion any items removed from the Consent Calendar. 
 The chair opened the discussion of item 3.1 

 
Dr. Marla Stuart made a motion, seconded by Matt Regan to approve the minutes from September 12, 2022 
Commission Meeting. 
 

Roll call of vote: 
District 1:  Dr. Rocio Hernandez - Yes 
District 2:  Marilyn Cachola Lucey - Yes 
District 3:  Lee Ross - Yes 
District 4:  Matt Regan - Yes 
District 5:  John Jones - Yes 
Health Services:  Dr. Ori Tzvieli - Yes 
EHSD:  Dr. Marla Stuart - Yes 
 
Nos:  NONE 
The following members ABSTAINED:   
Board of Supervisors:  Diane Burgis 
District 5:  John Jones 
Children & Families Services:  Kathy Marsh 
 
 
Absent:  District 1 Alternate:  Genoveva Garcia Calloway; District 3 Alternate:  Rhoda Butler; Board of 
Supervisors Alternate Candace Andersen; Health Services Alternate:  Dr. Sefanit F. Mekuria; Children & 
Families Services Alternate:  Roslyn Gentry 
 

The item APPROVED. 
 

5.0 CONSIDER accepting the 2023 health and dental employer-paid premium contribution rates for active 
employees; and accept the 2023 premium contribution rates for intermittent employees, COBRA participants, 
retirees, and survivors at the same levels as the County. 

 First 5 Contra Costa Human Resources Manager Tammy Henry gave a report on the item, citing that Contra Costa 
Health plan had a 6.8% increase and Health Net had between 7-8% increase in rates.  It was reported that a 
majority of First 5 Staff are enrolled on Kaiser plans (which did not have an increase in rates).  
 



   

Special Commission Meeting MINUTES 
Page 3 of 5 

 
 4005 Port Chicago Highway, Suite 120, Concord, CA 94520 •  925.771.7300  •  fax 925.771.6083  •  www.first5coco.org 

After her presentation, Commissioner John Jones asked if staff had budgeted an increase for health benefits this 
year? 
 
Tammy informed that the budget last year increased 5.5% and the increase in the upcoming budget is projected 
at about 5%. 
 
Supervisor Burgis reported the county will increase its contribution to $750 annually into the HSA (Health Savings 
Account) for active eligible employees who are enrolled in Kaiser Permanente High Deductible Health Plan and 
have an HSA as of January 1, 2023 of the new plan year.  This contribution will be made with the February 10, 
2023 pay for active employees. Health Savings Account | Contra Costa County, CA Official Website 
 
Lee Ross made a motion, seconded by Dr. Marla Stuart to accept the 2023 health and dental employer-paid 
premium contribution rates for active employees; and accept the 2023 premium contribution rates for 
intermittent employees, COBRA participants, retirees, and survivors at the same levels as the County. 
 

Roll call of vote: 
District 1:  Dr. Rocio Hernandez - Yes 
District 2:  Marilyn Cachola Lucey - Yes 
District 3:  Lee Ross - Yes 
District 4:  Matt Regan - Yes 
District 5:  John Jones - Yes 
Board of Supervisors:  Diane Burgis - Yes 
Health Services:  Dr. Ori Tzvieli - Yes 
EHSD:  Dr. Marla Stuart - Yes 
Children & Families Services:  Kathy Marsh – Yes 
 
Nos:  NONE 
Abstain:  NONE 
Absent:  District 1 Alternate:  Genoveva Garcia Calloway; District 3 Alternate:  Rhoda Butler; Board of 
Supervisors Alternate Candace Andersen; Health Services Alternate:  Dr. Sefanit F. Mekuria; Children & 
Families Services Alternate:  Roslyn Gentry 
 

The item was APPROVED. 
 

6.0 RECEIVE presentation of State Updates and Highlights from Avo Makdessian, Executive Director, First 5 
Association of California. 

 Ruth Fernandez introduced Avo Makdessian who gave an update presentation on the activities at the First 5 
Association. 
 
His report highlights include: 

• The First 5 Network Structure, Vision, Mission, Role and Approach representing all 58 First 5 County 
Commissions and Policy Development and State Advocacy. 

• Gave the Strategic Plan and Priorities:   
- Assert Policy Leadership and Drive Systems Change 
- Member Support and Member Focused Support Area facilitating learning and engagement between 
all 58 county members 
- To center Race, Equity, Diversity and Inclusion (REDI) in everything they do. 

https://www.contracosta.ca.gov/6455/Health-Savings-Account


   

Special Commission Meeting MINUTES 
Page 4 of 5 

 
 4005 Port Chicago Highway, Suite 120, Concord, CA 94520 •  925.771.7300  •  fax 925.771.6083  •  www.first5coco.org 

- Building Strategic Capacity as an organization and as a network. 
Legislative Highlights in his report included:  

• Ensuring Medi-Cal eligibility for children birth through age 5, awaiting federal approval set in 2025. 
• SB951 to increase the amount of replacement wages for any family that had to take leave to care for a 

newborn, also known as Paid Family Leave. 
• Looking for ways to ensure funding sustainability for First 5 Commissions throughout the state.   
• Planning Work Group at the Association to talk about “what do we need” “what can we do?” and “what 

should we ask from the State, in terms of funding to recoup potential losses in revenue due to declining 
tobacco tax income.”  The California State Association of Counties members had also been looking at 
First 5 sustainability and can be a source of support. 

• How to incorporate Family Voice and Leadership. 
 

Lee Ross asked, after the Governor’s recent veto of Mandatory Kindergarten, where does the State Advocacy 
from First 5 stand on that issue? 
 
Avo reported that from the Policy Perspective, the Association has increased attention on a Health Development 
of young children and the focused on policies related to healthy development, particularly home visiting and 
medical reimbursement.  He also informed that the association had not focused on as much on Early Childhood 
and Child Care and TK expansion.  The Association is tracking all bills that were supportive in all those areas.  For 
all the members that we represent Mandatory Kindergarten has been difficult for some rural communities to 
implement.  He expressed hope that the Governor would restore funding for it in the future. 
 
 

7.0 RECEIVE overview presentation of First 5 Contra Costa Strategic Planning Process for FY 2023-2026. Presented 
by Nicole Young, Consultant. 

 Nicole Young gave the following presentation on the process for updating the Strategic Plan: 
- Reviewed First 5’s strategic planning framework. 
- Gave an overview of the 2023 – 2026 Strategic Planning Process 
- Provided layers of Organizational Planning from the strategic “big picture” goals to the operational day 

to day work routine. 
- Gave common elements of a Strategic Plan using Theory of Change (Vision, Mission, Values, Goals and 

Strategies and Key Activities.) 
- Gave an outline of the Planning Process and Timeline anticipating completion in May 2023. 

 
Gareth Ashley asked why this upcoming Strategic Plan has moved away from having a 5 to 4 year plan in the 
past, to now 3-year plan? 
 
Ruth informed that because there are many big transformation changes in policy, there is a lot we do not know 
long term.  I think we can affect systems change in this term, and this incremental approach to our planning 
allows us to be intentional and make strategic decisions keeping in mind the fiscal landscape of dwindling 
revenue. This is why I would recommend we keep the term shorter for now. 
 
Additionally, the following commissioners remarked: 
 

- John Jones suggested a glossary of organizations and services that are being delivered be included in 
the upcoming retreat.  He suggested also a way of identifying the dollars that are coming in and be 



   

Special Commission Meeting MINUTES 
Page 5 of 5 

 
 4005 Port Chicago Highway, Suite 120, Concord, CA 94520 •  925.771.7300  •  fax 925.771.6083  •  www.first5coco.org 

able to see the direction where our investments are going.  The goal is to refrain from duplicating a 
partner or cohort’s efforts.   

- Dr. Marla Stuart informed that EHSD will share the information of its services to the Commission, 
referenced John Jones’ remark. 

- Lee Ross wants to see a summary of First 5 Contra Costa’s previous goals and achievements and other 
datum (number of children who received various services information). 

- Dr. Rocio Hernandez would like to see Commissioners plug in to operationalizing / representing / 
taking the role on matters being prioritized in the new Strategic Plan. 

 
8.0 Communications:  

The Chair noted that these 2 articles were included in the packet: 
 - Improving Racial Equity in Kindergarten Readiness Inventory Efforts Report from First 5 Center for 

Children’s Policy. 
- First 5 Contra Costa’s Community Impact Award Notification by the East Bay Leadership Council. 

  
9.0 Commissioner F.Y.I. Updates  
 Chairwoman Dr. Rocio Hernandez sends condolences on behalf of the Commission to District 3 Alternate 

Commissioner, Rhoda Butler who is mourning the death of her son. 
 

10.0 Adjourn  
The meeting adjourned at 7:29 pm. 

 
 





 
 
 
 

November 14, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4.3 
 

Accept the 4th Quarter Financial Report of FY 2021-2022 
 
 





11/10/2022

Line # REVENUE Note 

1 State Sales Tax
2 Sales Tax Apportionment - Proposition 10, 56, SMIF 9,819,565           9,819,565           8,151,169           8,151,169           83% 1

3 State Grants
4 CA DHCS - ACEs Aware Round 1 Grant -                      -                      43,444                43,444                
5 CA DHCS - ACEs Aware Round 2 Grant 800,519              800,519              1,813,681           1,813,681           227% 2

6 First 5 California IMPACT Grant 712,514              712,514              679,724              679,724              95%
7 First 5 California Dual Language Learner Grant (DLL) 467,934              467,934              329,523              329,523              70%
8 Subrecipient Awards
9 CA State Preschool Quality Block Grant (CSPP) 258,830              258,830              251,119              251,119              97%

10 Quality Counts California (QCC) 229,775              229,775              211,905              211,905              92%
11 First 5 Association - HUB Training MOU 107,445              107,445              70,094                70,094                65%
12 MHSA-Behavioral Health Agreement (Triple P) & CLC 82,000                82,000                111,741              111,741              136% 3

13 Workforce Pathways/Prof Devel Program (CCC Office Educ) 10,000                10,000                
14 Philanthropic Grants
15 Community Engagement Foundation Grants 50,000                50,000                175,000              175,000              350% 4

16 Lesher Ready Kids East County 235,000              235,000              230,000              230,000              98%
17 Sunlight Giving Grant (Yr. 3 of 3) & Lesher Grant 100,000              100,000              125,000              30,000                155,000              155% 5

18 Other Revenue 
19 Interest Income 100,000              100,000              98,982                98,982                99%
20 Unrealized Loss (245,573)             (245,573)             6

21 Other Misc. Income -                      -                      -                      442,151              442,151              7

22 TOTAL FY 2021-22 REVENUE   9,919,565         3,044,017         12,963,582       8,129,578         4,398,381         12,527,959       97%

23   Prop 10/56 Fund Balance Drawdown 1,509,511         -                    1,509,511         

24 TOTAL REVENUE   11,429,076       3,044,017         14,473,094     8,129,578         4,398,381         12,527,959     87%

25

26 PROGRAM EXPENSES F5 Contra Costa 
Funds Other Funds Total Expense 

Budget
F5 Contra Costa 

Funds Other Funds Total Expense 
Budget

27 Program Initiatives
28 Early Childhood Education Initiative
29 Professional Development 425,000 80,000 505,000 454,772 55,000 509,772 101%
30 Early Learning Quality 24,000 904,725 928,725 581 508,722 509,303 55%
31 East County Ready Kids, Lesher (trf from Stakeholder Eng) -                          235,000              235,000              45,108                45,108                19% 8
32 Literacy 117,869              52,131                170,000              173,400              54,250                227,650              134% 9
33 Total 566,869 1,271,856 1,838,725 628,753 663,080 1,291,833 70%
34 Family Support
35 First 5 Centers 3,005,391           -                          3,005,391           2,349,032           2,349,032           78% 10
36 Home Visiting 610,000              -                          610,000              537,720              537,720              88%
37 Training and Consultation 20,000                -                          20,000                7,170                  7,170                  36%
38 Total 3,635,391 -                          3,635,391 2,893,923 -                          2,893,923 80%
39 Early Intervention
40 Triple P Therapeutic Services 83,500                82,000                165,500              96,741                86,741                183,482              111% 11
41   Coordinated System of Care

42 Intervention Services  (formerly ECE Consultation) 563,000              -                          563,000              39,530                39,530                7% 12
43 Help Me Grow Services 435,990              -                          435,990              433,649              122                     433,771              99%
44   Children Experiencing Stress/Trauma

45 Provider Support  (formerly Children at Risk Stress/Trauma) 29,000                -                          29,000                561                     561                     2% 13
46 ACEs Aware -                          399,358              399,358              1,260,359           1,260,359           316% 14

47 Training and Consultation -                          -                          -                          2,145                  2,145                  
48 Total 1,111,490 481,358 1,592,848 572,626 1,347,221 1,919,848 121%
49 Stakeholder Engagement & Policy Advocacy
50 Community Engagement 160,000              50,000                210,000 43,731                109,628              153,359 73%
51 Family Economic Security Partnership 15,000                15,000 1,080                  1,080 7%
52 Public Information  ( trf to Communications) -                          -                          
53 East County Ready Kids, Lesher  (trf to Early Childhood Edu) -                          -                          
54 Total 175,000              50,000                225,000 44,811                109,628              154,439 69%
55 Program Salaries/Benefits and Overhead Expenses 
56 Program Salaries & Wages (trf out Communications' fete costs) 1,369,777 947,981 2,317,758 1,032,676 1,000,220 2,032,897 88%
57 Program Benefits (trf out Communications' fete costs) 706,102 472,470 1,178,571 571,066 527,539 1,098,605 93%
58 Program Expenses and Overhead (trf out % share to Comm) 619,360 619,360 146,702 409,654 556,356 90%
59 Total 2,695,239 1,420,450 4,115,689 1,750,445 1,937,414 3,687,858 90%
60 TOTAL PROGRAM EXPENSES   8,183,989 3,223,664 11,407,652 5,890,557 4,057,343 9,947,900 87%
61

62 COMMUNICATIONS F5 Contra Costa 
Funds Other Funds Total Expense 

Budget
F5 Contra Costa 

Funds Other Funds Total Expense 
Budget

63 Communications Salaries & Wages (trf from Stakeholder Eng) 160,130              55,558                215,688              136,692              54,998                191,690              89%
64 Communications Employee Benefits (trf from Stakeholder Eng) 96,837                33,084                129,921              66,894                29,034                95,928                74%
65 Professional Services               115,500 -                          115,500                              26,282 26,282                23%
66 Purchased Services and Supplies 146,200              -                          146,200              5,647                  5,647                  4%
67 Communications Expenses and Overhead (trf % from Prg Exp/OH) 26,298                -                          26,298                14,883                461                     15,344                58%
68 TOTAL COMMUNICATIONS   544,965              88,642                633,607              250,398              84,493                334,891              53%
69

70 STRATEGIC  INFORMATION  & PLANNING F5 Contra Costa 
Funds Other Funds Total Expense 

Budget
F5 Contra Costa 

Funds Other Funds Total Expense 
Budget

71    SIP Salaries & Wages 262,984              32,711                295,695              115,659              22,686                138,345              47%
72    SIP Employee Benefits 121,484              14,581                136,065              47,584                9,586                  57,170                42%
73    Professional Services 277,800              26,461                304,261              107,638              107,638              35%
74    Purchased Services and Supplies 9,000                  -                          9,000                  5,859                  5,859                  65%
75    SIP Expenses and Overhead 44,308                -                          44,308                12,353                188                     12,540                28%
76 TOTAL STRATEGIC INFO & PLANNING 715,576              73,753                789,329 289,094              32,459                321,553 41%
77

78 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES F5 Contra Costa 
Funds Other Funds Total Expense 

Budget
F5 Contra Costa 

Funds Other Funds Total Expense 
Budget

79   Administrative Salaries & Wages 723,291 -                          723,291 580,744 580,744 80%
80   Administrative Employee Benefits 395,012 -                          395,012 305,858 305,858 77%
81   Professional Services 118,766 37,234                156,000 334,624 334,624 215% 15

82   Purchased Services & Supplies 83,762 85,788                169,550 148,545 148,545 88%
83   Operating Overhead (Cnty Cnsl/Risk Mgmt, DoIT/EHSD, etc.) 121,793 66,860                188,653 87,549 87,549 46%
84   COVID-19 Supplies 10,000 -                          10,000 8,733 8,733 87%
85 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES   1,452,623 189,882 1,642,506 1,466,054 1,466,054 89%
86

87 GRAND TOTAL   10,897,153 3,575,940 14,473,094 7,896,102 4,174,296 12,070,398 83%

Note 1

Note 2 ACEs Grant Round 2   02/01/21 - 06/30/22 (18 months); Percentage higher due to cross-over in 2 
fiscal years and allocation of costs. Program 78.82% Program 82.42%

Note 3 Includes MHSA Behavioral Health matching funding for Triple P & funding for Children's 
Leadership Council (CLC) from lead partner entities. Communications 4.38% Communications 2.77%

Note 4 High percentage due to the crossover in fiscal years and mid-year grant awards received. SIP 5.45% 5.45% SIP 2.66% 2.66%
Note 5 High percentage due to mid-year awards received. Administration 9.98% 9.98% Administration 12.07% 12.07%
Note 6 Reflects loss fair market value adjustment. Overhead/COVID 1.37% 1.37% Overhead/COVID 0.07% 0.07%
Note 7 Includes indirect cost revenue from other public funds. 100.00% 100.00%
Note 8 Percentage lower due to crossover of grant over 2 fiscal years; personnel recorded under lines 56 

and 57.

Note 9 Reflects additional literacy contracted services. First 5 Contra Costa Strategic Plan FY 2020/21 - 2022/23
Note 10 Percentage lower due to program staffing shortages and deferred training to FY 22/23. Fund Balance as of ##########
Note 11 Percentage higher due to  3%  COLA retroactively allocated mid-year. Nonspendable 274,893      
Note 12 Placeholder for System of Care; allocated  to FY22/23.      Prepaid Expenses and Deposits 167,893      
Note 13 Percentage lower due to re-allocation under ACES II grant.      Loans Receivable - Brighter Beginnings 107,000      
Note 14 Percentage higher due to cross-over in 2 fiscal years and allocation of costs. Restricted 230,000      
Note 15 Percentage higher due to professional services for office relocation.     D&M Lesher Foundation - Ready Kids 230,000      

Assigned 4,649,586   
     Elimination of FY22/23 Budget Deficit 2,242,799   
     Leases 2,406,787   
Unassigned Funds  13,732,477 
      Unassigned 13,732,477 

Total Fund Balance 18,886,956 

83.20% 85.19%

Total Total

 % of 
Budget     

State Sales Tax revenue includes Prop 10, Prop 56, and SMIF (Interest accrued while in State 
interest earning accts prior to distribution to counties).

Percent of Total Expenses (Budget) Percent of Total Expenses (Actual)
FY 2021-22 FY 2021-22

FY 2021-22 Approved Budget FY21/22 4th Quarter Revenue and Expenditures

F5 Contra Costa 
Funds Other Funds  Total Revenue 

Budget 
 F5 Contra 

Costa Funds  Other Funds  Total Revenue 
and Expense 

 % of 
Budget     





 
 
 
 

November 14, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4.4 
 

Accept the First 5 Contra Costa October 2022 Program Reports 
 
 





PROGRAM UPDATES 
October 2022 
 

www.first5coco.org | (925) 771-7300 

 
Community Engagement Program  
Our Community Engagement Program (CE) supports three Regional Groups made up of 200 parents and 
residents to make Contra Costa County safer, healthier and more equitable for families: West County Regional Group 
(WCRG), Central County Regional Group (CCRG), and East County Regional Group (ECRG). 
 
East County Regional Group Hosts North Antioch Candidates Forum 

On October 5, the ECRG co-hosted the first North Antioch candidates’ forum to explore candidates’ 
positions on issues of importance to children and families. Together with Healthy & Active Before 5 and 
the Alliance of Californians for Community Empowerment (ACCE), the ECRG hosted 75 attendees, 
candidates Tamisha Torres-Walker and Joy Motts, and moderator Dr. Lamont Francies for an informative, 
enlightening discussion. Topics included housing stability, public safety, park equity, recreation 
programming, childcare, and economic security. The forum recording can be found on the ECRG 
Facebook page. 
 
City of Antioch and ECRG Host Rent Stabilization 

Policy Signing and Celebration 

On October 18, the City of Antioch and the ECRG hosted a 
celebration rally and signing ceremony of the recently passed 
rent stabilization policy. The event, attended by 70 tenants 
and allies, featured speeches by ECRG members, CE staff 
and the Antioch City Council. Culminating with the Mayor’s 
policy signing. The event was covered by 8 media outlets, including 4 television channels, 2 radio stations 
and 2 newspapers. The rent stabilization policy will be effective on November 10, 2022. The celebration 
coverage can be found here: KPIX, KTVU, Telemundo, Univision, KQED, KPFA, East Bay Times 
 
Regional Groups Reach Thousands of Families to Get Out the Vote  

Regional Groups have worked hard to distribute voting information to potential voting families with young 
children in Richmond, Concord, and Antioch. Since late August, members have canvassed and ‘phone-
banked’ to engage families with young children, new voters, voters of color, and low-income families in 
the upcoming elections. To date, members have reached over 3,000 households with voting information 
and opportunities to register to vote. Parent leaders will continue voter outreach until election day. 
 
Early Intervention 
Our Early Intervention (EI) initiative aims to ensure that families have access to prevention and early intervention 
supports and services that foster the optimal development of all children. 
 
Efforts in Supporting Workforce Development 

First 5 Staff members Liliana Gonzalez and Emily Hampshire 
presented at this year’s Help Me Grow (HMG) National Forum. The 
presentation titled, “Making the Connection: Supporting ACE 
Screening,” highlighted our efforts leveraging our HMG system for the integration of ACEs screening into 
three health clinics. The presentation had a total of 50 attendees and was well received. 
 
Self-Care Week Success 

During September 26-30, First 5 Contra Costa launched our inaugural Self-Care Week via the Contra 
Costa Network of Care online hub—self-care is a critical component in ensuring quality, trauma-informed, 

http://www.first5coco.org/
https://www.facebook.com/eastcountyregionalgroup
https://www.facebook.com/eastcountyregionalgroup
https://mms.tveyes.com/MediaCenterPlayer.aspx?u=aHR0cDovL21lZGlhY2VudGVyLnR2ZXllcy5jb20vZG93bmxvYWRnYXRld2F5LmFzcHg%2FVXNlcklEPTM3OTA4NyZNRElEPTE4MjU5MDU1Jk1EU2VlZD02MDI1JlR5cGU9TWVkaWE%3D
https://mms.tveyes.com/MediaCenterPlayer.aspx?u=aHR0cDovL21lZGlhY2VudGVyLnR2ZXllcy5jb20vZG93bmxvYWRnYXRld2F5LmFzcHg%2FVXNlcklEPTM3OTA4NyZNRElEPTE4MjU5MDY2Jk1EU2VlZD03MjA5JlR5cGU9TWVkaWE%3D
https://www.telemundoareadelabahia.com/noticias/local/ordenanza-de-control-de-renta-en-antioch/2263399/
https://www.univision.com/local/san-francisco-kdtv/alcalde-de-antioch-firma-ley-para-controlar-el-alza-de-la-renta-video
https://mms.tveyes.com/MediaCenterPlayer.aspx?u=aHR0cDovL21lZGlhY2VudGVyLnR2ZXllcy5jb20vZG93bmxvYWRnYXRld2F5LmFzcHg%2FVXNlcklEPTM3OTA4NyZNRElEPTE4MjU5MDI3Jk1EU2VlZD0zMDk2JlR5cGU9TWVkaWE%3D
https://kpfaapprent.wordpress.com/2022/10/21/full-circle-10-21-2022-recent-victories-election-news-and-a-memorial-walk-for-timmy/
https://www.mercurynews.com/2022/10/18/east-bay-tenants-advocates-celebrate-signing-of-historic-rent-protections/
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.contracostanetworkofcare.org%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cwdavis%40first5coco.org%7C0bfd77dfa3454a715ed508dab1f09a61%7C76c13a07612f4e06a2f4783d69dc4cdb%7C0%7C0%7C638017944202235924%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=t4K8%2FhR0G8c4VM6WpBFfz%2FPQaCgryhEfTT9H5P5Y9kw%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.contracostanetworkofcare.org%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cwdavis%40first5coco.org%7C0bfd77dfa3454a715ed508dab1f09a61%7C76c13a07612f4e06a2f4783d69dc4cdb%7C0%7C0%7C638017944202235924%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=t4K8%2FhR0G8c4VM6WpBFfz%2FPQaCgryhEfTT9H5P5Y9kw%3D&reserved=0


PROGRAM UPDATES 
October 2022 
 

www.first5coco.org | (925) 771-7300 

healing-centered services for young children and their families. During Self-Care Week, 25+ scheduled 
“influencers” representing 15+ organizations shared on the hub about how they engage with self-care. 
The week culminated with the public launch of our Contra Costa Network of Care Video, starring our very 
own Wanda Davis (and you’ll notice some other familiar faces as well). We welcome EVERYONE to 
check out the video, the Self-Care Week posts, and to add your own posts and comments about the 
importance of self-care and trauma-informed practices for you, your colleagues, and the families you work 
with. Simply visit www.contracostanetworkofcare.org and click “JOIN THE NETWORK.”  
 
Violence Prevention Conference  

First 5 is one of the agencies sponsoring the Violence Prevention Conference occurring in-person at the 
Pleasant Hill Community Center on November 9, 2022. The Conference will focus on understanding 
violence prevention from a public health lens and speakers will include community experts in anti-
violence, racial equity, and interpersonal violence work. Camilla Rand, First 5 Deputy Director, will be a 
presenter on the community panel which is being produced by Emily Hampshire, First 5 Trauma & 
Resiliency Coordinator.  
 
Family Economic Security Partnership  
The Family Economic Security Partnership (FESP) is a public, private and nonprofit collaboration dedicated to 
increasing the income and building the assets of low-income families and individuals living in Contra Costa County. 
 
Family Economic Security Partnership (FESP) Activities 

On October 25, information about voting resources, a call for 
support for a proposal from the Office of Racial Equity and Social 
Justice to the Board of Supervisors, and many other resources 
were shared with FESP members.  
 
Community Advocacy + Partnership Project (CAPP) 

On October 12, CAPP held its seventh meeting of year two, “Learning in Action.” The focus of this 
meeting was campaign planning, as the economic and education equity teams are preparing to present 
their policy priorities and campaign plans in November to the full cohort.  
 
CAPP members received an informative presentation from Ali Saidi, founder of Stand Together Contra 
Costa, on the work that went on for this important immigrant rights campaign. Ali shared lessons learned, 
the importance of engaging community, how a loss isn’t a loss but preparation for what comes next, and 
the importance of focusing on mission and values. Ali also shared three key factors: the importance of a 
relational approach and building trust; intersectionality and impact considerations–to ensure that the goals 
of a campaign will impact those most marginalized; and to remember to “enjoy the ride” as it is a privilege 
to do this work and we are operating in an experimental lab. 
 
Following Ali’s presentation, the two teams met in their respective groups to work further on their 
campaign plans. The economic equity team will be interviewing foster youth to include their input in their 
campaign plan. The education team’s three regional groups (West Contra Costa, Mt. Diablo and East 
County) are all working on fleshing out their campaign plans, focusing on the overall goal of ensuring 
authentic parent/community engagement.  
 
CAPP core team has prepared a campaign planning Framework for the teams to use to map out their 
campaign plans as well as a draft outreach document for each team to use as they venture out to the 
community seeking input. The core CAPP team meets weekly and emails frequently to discuss the 

http://www.first5coco.org/
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fyoutu.be%2FcftPaIzXKKo&data=05%7C01%7Cwdavis%40first5coco.org%7C0bfd77dfa3454a715ed508dab1f09a61%7C76c13a07612f4e06a2f4783d69dc4cdb%7C0%7C0%7C638017944202235924%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=8KLvg0UJAzSXsB8KSLoLQfjFxrUTEierVznzx4fJypI%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.contracostanetworkofcare.org%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cwdavis%40first5coco.org%7C0bfd77dfa3454a715ed508dab1f09a61%7C76c13a07612f4e06a2f4783d69dc4cdb%7C0%7C0%7C638017944202235924%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=w1%2Fc5Gq21COeQ6dKb8yg3rMUmEfmJG8lhcK46m6%2Bj48%3D&reserved=0


PROGRAM UPDATES 
October 2022 
 

www.first5coco.org | (925) 771-7300 

projects and process, plan for each monthly cohort meeting as well as to plan for the monthly Steering 
Committee and issue team meetings.  
 
CAPP, through Ensuring Opportunity, has received funding from The San Francisco Foundation, Lesher 
Foundation, Y&H Soda Foundation and CA Endowment for year two. 
 

Family Support 
Our Family Support (FS) initiative helps families build healthy relationships, strengthen support systems, and nurture 
their children’s development. 
 
First 5 Center Hosts East County Care Closet Day 

With inflation, gas prices, supply chain issues, extreme weather, rising rents and interest rates, limited 
access to child care, these are extraordinary times for families with young children trying to make ends 
meet. The East County First 5 Center, in partnership with the Bay Point Community All N One, 
Community Arts Preschool in Walnut Creek, and White Pony Express came together to bring much 
needed items to Center families. The project served 29 families that received donations of new clothing, 
shoes, gently used toys, nursing items, beauty supplies and information on programs and services 
available through the participating partners.  
 
Antioch and Delta First 5 Center Parent Volunteers 

Deliver on Pumpkins  

With the Fall Fest celebrations nearing, the Antioch and Delta First 5 
Centers parent volunteers went the extra mile and solicited donations 
of pumpkins from G.S. Farms located in Brentwood and from a 
Center parent’s neighbor’s yard. The bounty included 150 mini-
pumpkins and 6 carving pumpkins that would eventually find their 
way into the hands of a child and a pumpkin decorating contest.   
 
The Antioch and Delta First 5 Center staff took home a trophy for their pumpkin decorating skills in the 
City of Oakley’s Fall Festival. “Circle Time with First 5” won first place in the Best Non-Profit Pumpkin 
display. Look for the City of Oakley to highlight the Center’s win in on social media.  
 
Schroeder Family Foundation Maintains Commitment to West County Families 

The Marin County based Schroeder Family Fund has been funding the West County First 5 Center since 
2010 to offer additional sessions of Raising a Reader and StoryCycles provided by Tandem to families 
residing in Richmond. In 2020, the Schroeder Family Fund approved using $6000 to purchase 60 gift 
cards valued at $100 each to distribute to families in lieu of programming that was suspended during the 
Pandemic. The relationship between the West County First 5 Center and the Schroeder Family Fund is 
stronger than ever in 2022 marked by a renewed commitment to family literacy.  
 
To complement the West County First 5 Center’s goals to raise awareness and promote the Center to 
Black and African American families, the grant will cover the cost of providing 11 “Melanated Bay Play-
Family Literacy Events” for 12 months. Alexina Rojas, West County Center Director, explains the 
significance of the name staff chose for the events. "Melanated means an individual who has higher 
melanin. Melanated is a term used by some Black and Brown people, but most often by Black and African 
American people who use it to express love and pride of their culture and identity. We wanted to elevate 
and celebrate our Black and African American families with a place and space that promote literacy 
through play.”  

http://www.first5coco.org/


PROGRAM UPDATES 
October 2022 
 

www.first5coco.org | (925) 771-7300 

 
The events will connect various types of play to literacy and school readiness, book reading and 
storytelling strategies, and easy-to-implement language strategies to increase vocabulary and critical 
thinking. The goals of these events are to celebrate or increase parents’ time spent reading and book 
cuddling with their child, to increase parents' ability to create a play and language rich environment 
throughout their daily routines, and to highlight children’s books with Black characters as well as other 
diverse characters. Each family that participates will receive a high quality, culturally diverse book at each 
event. Alexina expressed excitement about the opportunity the Schroeder Family Fund offers, “It is our 
hope that by providing this space, and opportunity for Black families, a culturally relevant community 
around children will emerge and childhood literacy, school readiness, and other developmental topics will 
have meaning and purpose from the perspective of the families”.   
 
Early Childhood Education 
Our Early Childhood Education (ECE) Initiative aims to ensure that all children have access to high-quality, 
affordable child care and early learning. 
 
Ready Kids East County (RKEC) Initiative: 

RKEC Parent Group 
On October 22, the Ready Kids East County Parent Group 
met at the Smith Family Farm in Brentwood, CA to partake in 
the farm’s annual “Pumpkin Harvest.” A total of 52 parents, 
caregivers, and children attended the meetup with the 
youngest attendee being just a few weeks old. First 5 Contra 
Costa staff members Jessica Keener, the RKEC Coordinator, 
Lisa Johnson, the Grants and Contracts Manager, and 
Wanda Davis, the Early Intervention Program Officer, also 
participated in the event and Lisa and Wanda each brought a family member along to join in on the fun.  
  
Families were able to walk around and explore the many offerings of the farm such as live music, face 
painting, a petting zoo, a corn maze, a playground constructed out of bales of hay, a pumpkin patch, and 
a replica Miwok village. After having some time to stretch their legs around the farm, families returned to 
our picnic table area and were able to share their adventures with each other over lunch. Before leaving 
the farm, First 5 staff gave each child a tote bag with different illustrated varieties of pumpkins on it as 
well as enough tea lights and pumpkin carving kits for each member of their family. Each ticket to the farm 
came with a free pumpkin from the farm’s pumpkin patch, which families may carve and submit to the 
RKEC Facebook Group for the RKEC Pumpkin Carving Contest. Families thoroughly enjoyed themselves 
and cannot wait until the next event.  
 
Engaging Ourselves and Our Work Through Anti-bias Anti-racist Practices Training Series 
This two-part training series by Shawn Bryant focused on engaging early childhood education providers, 
teachers, and staff in their work through shifts in their thinking by using anti-bias and anti-racist practices 
and principles. Session 1, which was offered on Wednesday, October 12, had a total of 32 attendees. 
This session explored the definitions of anti-bias and anti-racist and introduced the 4 Goals of Anti-bias 
Education: Goal 1: Identity, Goal 2: Diversity, Goal 3: Justice, and Goal 4: Activism according to the 
National Association for the Education of Young Children (NAEYC). Session 2, which was offered on 
Wednesday, October 26, had a total of 18 attendees. Session 2 allowed ECE providers to practice their 
learnings from both sessions by assessing children’s books and how well they incorporated anti-bias and 
anti-racist principles.  

http://www.first5coco.org/


PROGRAM UPDATES 
October 2022 
 

www.first5coco.org | (925) 771-7300 

 

Teaching Pyramid Training Launches  

First 5 Contra Costa launched the 10-part Teaching Pyramid Module Series on October 22, 2022, for the 
third consecutive year. Vivian Ratkewicz, M.A, Early Care and Education Consultant/Coach and First 5’s 
Quality Improvement Coaches are leading 39 early childhood providers, from a mixture of family child 
care homes and centers, through modules, coaching, and/or leadership trainings. Teaching Pyramid 
provides a framework to promote social and emotional development, a highly requested topic by 
providers. The Quality Matters Teaching Pyramid Training is based on evidence-based practices from the 
Center on the Social Emotional Foundations in Early Learning (CSEFEL) and West Ed’s Center for Child 
and Family Studies trainings.  
 
Environment Rating Scale (ERS) Trainings  

The month of October kicked off Quality Matters Trainings and began with a focus on the Environmental 
Rating Scales (ERS). California ERS Master Anchor, Carlos Lopez, offered an Early Childhood 
Environmental Rating Scale (ECERS) training, an Infant/Toddler Environment Rating Scale (ITERS) 
training, and a Family Child Care Environment Rating Scale (FCCERS) in October for 29 participants. 
Over 92% of participants confirmed they understood the purpose of the environmental rating tools as a 
way to improve quality, over 92% of participants noted they gained familiarity with the content of the 
scale, and over 85% of participants can interpret the scales. 
 
Family Child Care Partner Enrollment  

The new Quality Matters program, Family Child Care (FCC) Partners, received over 60 applications from 
eligible FCC Providers in Contra Costa County. These FCC Providers will be matched with the 17 FCC 
Partners for ongoing guidance and support in early November. FCC Partners and FCC Providers will 
connect to develop a quality improvement goal to guide their partnership throughout the year. Topics may 
include business strategies (including staffing), Community Care Licensing regulations, curriculum, 
environment (indoors and outdoors), family engagement, health & safety, self-care, supporting children 
with special needs, and more.  
 

Professional Development Program Applications 

The Professional Development Program (PDP) received more than 145 online applications during the 
months of September and October. This year, the application and program documentation take place in 
the California Early Care & Education Workforce Registry (Registry). ECE Consultant, Vivian Ratkewicz, 
M.A. provided technical assistance for the registry, including continued drop-in hours in October to 
support interested participants in completing the online application.  
 
 
 

http://www.first5coco.org/




 
 
 
 

November 14, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4.5 
 

Consider adopting a resolution authorizing First 5 Contra Costa to conduct 
teleconference meetings pursuant to Government Code section 54953 (e) 

and make related findings. 
 
 





   
 

 Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-08 
 

A RESOLUTION OF FIRST 5 CONTRA COSTA CHILDREN AND FAMILIES 
COMMISSION AUTHORIZING TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS UNDER 

GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54953(e) (ASSEMBLY BILL 361) 
 

Recitals 
 
A. On March 4, 2020, Governor Gavin Newsom proclaimed the existence of a state of 

emergency in California under the California Emergency Services Act, Government Code 
(GC) §8550 et seq. 

B. On March 10, 2020, the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors found that due to the 
introduction of COVID-19 in the County, conditions of disaster or extreme peril to the 
safety of persons and property had arisen, commencing on March 3, 2020.  Based on these 
conditions, pursuant to GC §8630, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 
2020/92, proclaiming the existence of a local emergency throughout Contra Costa County. 

C. On March 17, 2020, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-29-20, which suspended 
the teleconferencing rules set forth in the California Open Meeting law, GC §54950 et seq. 
(the Brown Act), provided certain requirements were met and followed. 

D. On June 11, 2021, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-08-21, which clarified the 
suspension of the teleconferencing rules set forth in the Brown Act and further provided that 
those provisions would remain suspended through September 30, 2021. 

E. On September 16, 2021, Governor Newsom signed Assembly Bill (AB) 361, which provides 
that under GC §54953(e), a legislative body subject to the Brown Act may continue to meet 
using teleconferencing without complying with the non-emergency teleconferencing rules in 
GC §54953(b)(3) if a proclaimed state of emergency exists and state or local officials have 
imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing. 

F. On September 1, 2022, the Contra Costa County Health Officer issued recommendations for 
safely holding public meetings that include recommended measures to promote social 
distancing.   

G. Among the Health Officer’s recommendations: (1) on-line meetings (teleconferencing 
meetings) are strongly recommended as those meetings present the lowest risk of 
transmission of SARS-CoV-2, the virus that causes COVID-19; (2) if a local agency 
determines to hold in-person meetings, offering the public the opportunity to attend via a 
call-in option or an internet-based service option is recommended when possible to give 
those at higher risk of an/or higher concern about COVID-19 an alternative to participating 
in person; (3) a written safety protocol should be developed and followed, and it is 
recommended that the protocol require social distancing – i.e., six feet of separation between 
attendees – and face masking of all attendees; (4) seating arrangements should allow for 
staff and members of the public to easily maintain at least six-foot distance from one another 
at all practicable times. 

H. Because of the prevalence of COVID-19 variants in the Bay Area, case rates and COVID-19 
hospitalizations remain high in the County. 

I. In the interest of public health and safety, as affected by the emergency caused by the spread 
of COVID-19, the First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission (First 5) intends 
to invoke the provisions of AB 361 related to teleconferencing. 

 
 



Resolution No. 2022-08 
 

Page 2 of 2 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission resolves as 
follows: 
 
1. First 5 finds that: the state of emergency proclaimed by Governor Newson on March 4, 

2020, is currently in effect; and the Contra Costa County Health Officer has strongly 
recommended that public meetings be held by teleconferencing as those meetings present 
the lowest risk of transmission of SARS-CoV-2, the virus that causes COVID-19.   
 

2. As authorized by AB 361, First 5 will use teleconferencing for its meetings in accordance 
with the provisions of GC §54953(e).  
 

3. The First 5 Executive Director is authorized and directed to take all actions necessary to 
implement the intent and purpose of this resolution, including conducting open and public 
meetings in accordance with GC §54953(e) and all other applicable provisions of the Brown 
Act.   
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on November 14, 2022, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:   
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
 
 
DR. ROCIO HERNANDEZ, CHAIR 
 

I hereby certify that this is a correct copy of a resolution passed and adopted by _________ on the 
date stated above. 
 
 
Dated: November 14, 2022        

  



 
 
 
 

November 14, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6.0 
 

Consider accepting the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Financial Audit 
6.1 (a) Public Hearing on the First 5 Contra Costa’s Annual 

Financial Audit for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 
(b) Adopt the Annual Financial 

 
 
 





1 

November 10, 2022 

To the Board of Commissioners 
First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 
Concord, California 

We have audited the financial statements of First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 
(Commission), a component unit of the County of Contra Costa, California, as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2022, and have issued our report thereon dated November 10, 2022. Professional standards require that we 
advise you of the following matters relating to our audit. 

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit under Generally Accepted Auditing 
Standards and Government Auditing Standards 

As communicated in our letter dated April 28, 2022, our responsibility, as described by professional 
standards, is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements that have been prepared 
by management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of the financial 
statements does not relieve you or management of your respective responsibilities. 

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain 
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting 
as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, 
as part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the Commission solely for the purpose of determining 
our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control. 

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our professional 
judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are not 
required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to communicate to you.  

We have provided our comments regarding a material weakness during our audit in our Independent 
Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on 
an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards dated 
November 10, 2022. 

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit  

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to you. 

What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebailly.com
2151 River Plaza Dr., Ste. 308  |  Sacramento, CA 95833-4133  |  T 916.570.1880  |  F 916.570.1875  |  EOE



2 

Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence 

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, our firm, and other firms utilized in the engagement, 
if applicable, have complied with all relevant ethical requirements regarding independence.  

Significant Risks Identified 

As stated in our auditor’s report, professional standards require us to design our audit to provide reasonable 
assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement whether caused by fraud or error. In 
designing our audit procedures, professional standards require us to evaluate the financial statements and 
assess the risk that a material misstatement could occur. Areas that are potentially more susceptible to 
misstatements, and thereby require special audit considerations, are designated as “significant risks”. We have 
identified management override of internal control as a significant risk as required generally accepted auditing 
standards.  

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the 
significant accounting policies adopted by the Commission is included in Note 1 to the financial statements. As 
described in Notes 1 and 15, the Commission has implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) Statement No. 87, Leases. Accordingly, the accounting change has been restrospectively applied to the 
financial statements beginning July 1, 2021.  No matters have come to our attention that would require us, 
under professional standards, to inform you about (1) the methods used to account for significant unusual 
transactions and (2) the effect of significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which 
there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. 

Significant Accounting Estimates 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based 
on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and experience about 
past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly 
sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future 
events affecting them may differ markedly from management’s current judgments.  

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are related to the net pension asset 
and the net other postemployment benefits (OPEB) liability. 

Management’s estimates of the net pension asset, net OPEB liability, and related deferred inflows and outflows 
are based on actuarial valuations. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimates, 
including but not limited to, the investment rate of return, the discount rate, and the healthcare cost trend rate 
and determined that they are reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.  



3 

Financial Statement Disclosures 

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive because of 
their significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the Commission’s 
financial statements relate to the sensitivity of the net pension asset to the discount rate and the sensitivity of 
the net OPEB liability to the discount rate or healthcare cost trend rate.  

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of the audit. 

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements  

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely 
misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate them 
to the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us to also communicate the 
effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of transactions, account 
balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole. Uncorrected misstatements or matters 
underlying those uncorrected misstatements could potentially cause future-period financial statements to be 
materially misstated, even though the uncorrected misstatements are immaterial to the financial statements 
currently under audit. There were no uncorrected misstatements identified as a result of our audit procedures. 

The following misstatements that we identified as a result of our audit procedures were brought to the 
attention of, and corrected by, management:   

Investment Income (Loss) $245,573 
Cash & Investments   $245,573 

*To record fair value loss attributable to First 5’s balance held in the County’s investment pool. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, 
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, 
which could be significant to the Commission’s financial statements or the auditor’s report. No such 
disagreements arose during the course of the audit. 

Circumstances that Affect the Form and Content of the Auditor’s Report 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards require that we communicate any circumstances that affect 
the form and content of our auditor’s report. We did not identify any circumstances that affect the form and 
content of the auditor’s report.   

Representations Requested from Management 

We have requested certain written representations from management which are included in the management 
representation letter dated November 10, 2022.  



4 

Modification of the Auditor’s Report 

The auditor’s report includes an emphasis of matter, describing the Commission’s adoption of the provisions of 
the GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, which has resulted in restatement of the beginning balances of capital 
assets and long-term debt as of July 1, 2021.  

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other 
accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters. 

Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues 

In the normal course of our professional association with the Commission, we generally discuss a variety of 
matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, significant events or 
transactions that occurred during the year, operating conditions affecting the entity, and operating plans and 
strategies that may affect the risks of material misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a 
condition to our retention as the Commission’s auditors. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Commissioners and management of the 
Commission and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Sacramento, California 



Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

First 5 Contra Costa Children and 
Families Commission 
(a Component Unit of the County of Contra Costa, California)

eidebailly.com



 

 
  

First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 
Table of Contents 

June 30, 2022 
 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report ................................................................................................................................... 1 

Management's Discussion and Analysis .................................................................................................................... 4 

Financial Statements 

Statement of Net Position ................................................................................................................................... 10 
Statement of Activities ......................................................................................................................................... 12 
Governmental Fund Balance Sheet ..................................................................................................................... 13 
Reconciliation of Governmental Fund Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position .................................... 14 
Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance ............................... 15 
Reconciliation of the Change in Fund Balance to the Change in Net Position .................................................... 16 
Notes to Financial Statements ............................................................................................................................. 17 

Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance – Budget and Actual General Fund ........... 41 
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) ................................................................ 42 
Schedule of Pension Contributions ...................................................................................................................... 43 
Schedule of Changes in the Commission’s Net OPEB Liability/(Asset) ................................................................ 44 
Schedule of the Commission’s OPEB Contributions ............................................................................................ 45 
Note to Required Supplementary Information .................................................................................................... 46 

Supplementary Information 

Schedule of Expenses by Fund Source and Net Position of CCFC Funds for First 5 Programs and Activities ...... 48 

Compliance Reports 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance  and Other 
 Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance  with Government Auditing 
 Standards ................................................................................................................................................................ 50 

Schedule of Findings and Responses 

Independent Auditor’s Report on State Compliance ............................................................................................... 54 

 



 

1 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 
To the Board of Commissioners 
First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 
Concord, California 
 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinions 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities and the general fund of the First 5 
Contra Costa Children and Families Commission (Commission), a component unit of the County of Contra 
Costa, California as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the Commission’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities and general fund of the 
Commission, as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinions 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Commission and 
to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to 
our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions. 
 
Adoption of New Accounting Standard/Emphasis of Matter 
 
As discussed in Note 1 and Note 15 to the financial statements, the Commission has adopted the provisions 
of Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 87, Leases, for the year ended June 30, 
2022. Accordingly, a restatement has been made to the governmental activities beginning net position as of 
July 1, 2021. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.  
 

What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebailly.com
2151 River Plaza Dr., Ste. 308  |  Sacramento, CA 95833-4133  |  T 916.570.1880  |  F 916.570.1875  |  EOE



 

2 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Commission’s ability to continue 
as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known 
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and 
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing 
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial 
statements.  
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:  
 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.  
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures 
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Commission’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the Commission’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control–related 
matters that we identified during the audit.  
 



3 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis, the budgetary comparison schedule, the schedule of proportionate share of the net 
pension liability/(asset), schedule of pension contributions, schedule of changes in the Commission’s net 
other postemployment benefits (OPEB), and the schedule of the Commission’s OPEB contributions be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management 
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance 
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Commission’s basic financial statements. The schedule of expenses by fund source and net 
position of the California Children and Families Commission (CCFC) Funds for First 5 Programs and Activities 
(schedule) is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to 
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule is fairly stated, in 
all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.  

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 10, 
2022, on our consideration of the Commission’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Commission’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
Commission’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Sacramento, California 
November 10, 2022 



 

4 

First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2022 
 
 
This Management's Discussion and Analysis is intended to serve as a narrative overview of the financial activities 
of First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission (Commission) for the year ended June 30, 2022. This 
information should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and the notes to the financial 
statements (beginning on page 10). 
 
Fiscal 2022 Financial Highlights 
 
Financial highlights of the year include the following: 
 
At the close of fiscal year 2021-2022, the Commission’s assets and deferred outflows exceeded its liabilities and 
deferred inflows by $21,923,108 (net position), an increase of 2% from the previous year. Of this amount, 
$3,894,681 was the net investment in capital assets and $230,000 was restricted for the Dean and Margaret 
Lesher Foundation – Ready Kids East County Grant. The remaining net position, $17,798,427 is available to meet 
the Commission’s ongoing obligations. The change in net position is due to an increase in Proposition 56 and 
grant revenues during fiscal year 2021-2022.  
 
Total Commission revenues for fiscal year 2021-2022 equaled $12,527,959, an increase of $1,195,927 from the 
prior year. The revenue consisted of Contra Costa’s Propositions 10 and 56 tax allocations by birth rate and 
project-specific funding from First 5 California and other public contracts including First 5 California IMPACT, 
IMPACT HUB, First 5 California Dual Language Learners Pilot (DLL), Quality Counts California (QCC), California 
State Preschool Program (CSPP), ACEs Aware; and other foundation grants and interest income. 
  
Contra Costa’s 2021-22 Proposition 10 tax revenue of $6,105,031 decreased 7% from the previous year’s total of 
$6,597,093. Statewide, Prop 10 income decreased $20,825,679 due to the ongoing decrease in tobacco use and 
Prop 56, the two dollar per pack tobacco tax. When Proposition 56 passed, it included an annual backfill to Prop 
10 to make up for the anticipated loss of cigarette tax revenue. First 5 Contra Costa received a Prop 56 backfill 
payment in FY 2021-22 of $2,046,138. 
 
Total expenses for fiscal year 2022 were $12,105,082, an increase of $1,445,797 from the previous year. The 
increase during fiscal year 2022 can be attributed to expenditures within professional services due to 
administrative facility relocation.  
 
During fiscal year 2021-22, total Commission revenues exceed expenditures by $422,877, eliminating the need 
for drawdown from the Fund Balance as projected in the approved budget.  
 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
The Commission's financial report includes: 
 

1. The basic financial statements, which include the government-wide financial statements and the fund 
financial statements 

2. Notes to the financial statements 
3. Required supplementary information 
4. Other supplementary information 



 
First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2022 

 
 

5 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements provide a broad overview of the Commission's activities as a whole, 
and are comprised of the statement of net position and the statement of activities. The statement of net 
position provides information about the financial position of the Commission on the full accrual basis, similar to 
that used in the private sector. It shows the Commission's assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. The statement of activities provides 
information about the Commission's revenues and all its expenses, also on the full accrual basis, and explains in 
detail the change in net position for the year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying 
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives. Fund accounting is used to ensure and demonstrate compliance 
with finance-related legal requirements. All of the Commission's activities are accounted for in the general fund. 
 
The fund financial statements report essentially the same functions as those reported in the government-wide 
financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, the fund financial statements 
report the Commission's operations in more detail and focus primarily on the short-term activities of the 
Commission. The fund financial statements are prepared on the modified accrual basis and measure only 
current revenues, expenditures and fund balances; they exclude capital assets and long-term liabilities. 
 
Notes to the Finance Statement 
 
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the 
government-wide and general fund financial statements.  
 
Other Information 
 
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain other 
information concerning the Commission's finances. 
 



 
First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2022 

 
 

6 

The following is a summary of the Commission's Statement of Net Position comparing balances at June 30, 2022 
and June 30, 2021. 
 

2022 2021 Change

Assets
Current and other assets 21,968,435$    20,036,044$    1,932,391$      
Capital assets, net of depreciation 7,969,812         3,978,553         3,991,259         

Total Assets 29,938,247      24,014,597      5,923,650         

Deferred outflows of resources 1,721,397         732,545            988,852            

Liabilities
Current liabilities 2,493,861         1,469,222         1,024,639         
Noncurrent liabilities 4,103,548         800,093            3,303,455         

Total Liabilities 6,597,409         2,269,315         4,328,094         

Deferred inflows of resources 3,139,127         977,596            2,161,531         

Net Position
Net investment in Capital Assets 3,894,681         3,978,553         (83,872)             
Restricted for:

Dean & Margaret Lesher Foundation 230,000            301,651            (71,651)             
Unrestricted 17,798,427      17,220,027      578,400            

Total Net Position 21,923,108$    21,500,231$    422,877$          

Governmental Activities

 
The Commission’s net position from governmental activities increased from $21,500,231 in 2021 to $21,923,108 
in 2022. The $422,877 increase in Net Position was due to an increase in Proposition 56 and grant revenues 
expenditures during fiscal year 2021-2022. 
 
The most significant portion of the Commission’s current assets is its cash balances. Current and other assets 
increased $1,932,391 from the prior year due to an increase in Proposition 56 and grant revenues, coupled with 
the recognition of a net pension asset. Cash is maintained in the Contra Costa County’s cash and investment 
pool where interest earned on the Commission’s balance is apportioned to the Commission. 
 
Another component of current assets is the due from other governments’ balance, which had a balance of 
$1,549,447 at June 30, 2022. These receivables are due from the State for the June 2022 Proposition 10 tax 
revenues ($533,683), the First 5 California Improve and Maximize Programs so All Children Thrive (IMPACT) 
grant ($352,365), California Quality Block Grant expenditures ($75,880), California State Preschool Program 
grant ($71,471), First 5 San Francisco for IMPACT regional training and technical assistance activities (HUB) Grant 
($68,537), First 5 California Dual Language Learners Pilot (DLL) Grant ($148,510), Workforce Pathways ($4,601) 
and ACES Aware grant ($294,400). 
 



 
First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2022 

 
 

7 

Noncurrent assets increased a total of $4,968,635. This change was mostly due to the recognition of a Right to 
use lease asset for office space of $4,196,789 in fiscal year 2021-22 due to the adoption of GASB Statement No. 
87, Leases, as well as the recognition of a Net Pension Asset of $763,759 and Net OPEB Asset of $106,617.  
 
Current liabilities for the year ending June 30, 2022 increased $1,040,341 from the prior year due to increased 
4th quarter contract payments and accounts payable. Current liabilities include vendor accounts payable of 
$325,434, 4th quarter contract payments of $1,436,531 payable to service providers and related parties at  
June 30, 2022, accrued wages and benefits of $299,128, unearned grant revenue of $150,010, and the current 
portions of compensated absences of $31,118 and lease liability $267,342.  
 
Noncurrent liabilities consist of the long-term portion of accrued vacation in the amount of $280,057 and lease 
liability of $3,807,789. 
 
In 2022, the Commission reported deferred outflows of resource and deferred inflows of resources in the 
amounts of $1,721,397 and $3,139,127 respectively. The deferred outflows and inflows of resources represent 
amounts that will increase (decrease) pension and OPEB expenses in subsequent periods. 
 
The following is a summary of the Commission's revenue, expense and change in net position comparing fiscal 
year 2021-2022 with fiscal year 2020-2021: 
 

2022 2021 Change

Program Revenues
Prop 10 Tax 6,105,031$      6,597,093$      (492,062)$        
Prop 56 2,046,138         1,983,319         62,819              
Grant income 4,488,118         2,738,091         1,750,027         

Total Program Revenues 12,639,287      11,318,503      1,320,784         

General Revenues
Interest income 98,982              12,241              86,741              
Unrealized loss (245,573)           -                         (245,573)           
Miscellaneous revenue 35,263              1,288                33,975              

Total Revenues 12,527,959      11,332,032      1,195,927         

Expenses
Child development 12,088,238      10,497,524      1,590,714         
Interest expense 16,844              -                         16,844              

Total Expenses 12,105,082      10,497,524      1,607,558         

Change in net position 422,877            834,508            (411,631)           

Net position, beginning of year 21,500,231      20,665,723      834,508            

Net position, end of year 21,923,108$    21,500,231$    422,877$          

Governmental Activities

 



 
First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2022 

 
 

8 

Proposition 10 revenue decreased $492,062 and Proposition 56 revenue increased $62,819 compared to the 
prior year. Grant income increased by $1,343,140.  
 
The Commission’s total expenses increased $1,607,558 (15%) from the prior year; and were aligned with the 
Commission’s 2021-2023 Strategic Plan. The Early Intervention Initiative, with ACEs Aware grant funding, 
continued training and engagement of early intervention providers, pediatricians and parents on developmental 
screenings, ACEs screening, and Trauma-Informed practices. Foundation grant funds supported general First 5 
Contra Costa operations and activities, as well as activities for the Community Engagement Program to continue 
advocacy and community organizing efforts focused on park improvements, voter registration engagement, 
parent leadership training, and advocacy for tenant protections and housing security for families with young 
children throughout the County. Additionally, COVID-19 related foundation grants made it possible to provide 
family and childcare providers with resources, COVID-19 Family Child Care Relief Provider Grants, PPE, and 
distribution of supplies and books through the First 5 Centers and the Quality Matters Program. The Early Care 
and Education (ECE) Initiative continued providing training for ECE providers and on-site coaching services 
through virtual sessions and Communities of Practice aimed at improving quality of early learning settings. In 
addition, the ECE Initiative implemented a robust practice-based capacity-building training and coaching model 
to ensure comprehensive supports for young dual language learner (DLL) children and their families. The DLL 
grant provided capacity building for early childhood educators to increase their knowledge and to learn 
Personalized Oral Language Learning (POLL) strategies with meaningful family engagement practices using a 
parent-focused Creative Connections curriculum. Further, the ECE Initiate continued implementation of school 
readiness activities for Black and African American children and families and partnership development with East 
County community-based organizations, school districts and city elected officials as part of the Ready Kids East 
County Initiative. The Family Support Initiative, maintained consistent in-person and online classes, activities and 
resources for young children and their families through the five First 5 Centers across Contra Costa County. 
 
Financial Analysis of the Governmental Fund 
 
The fluctuations in the Commission's General Fund revenues and expenditures from the year ended June 30, 
2021 year are similar to those in the government wide statement of activities. Differences between the General 
Fund and the governmental activities arise primarily due to differences in accounting treatment for 
compensated absences, retirement and other post-employment benefits, and capital assets resulting from the 
governmental fund financial statements being reported on a modified accrual basis of accounting. 
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
Revenues came in $596,937 below the budgeted amount (8%). Expenditures were under budget by $2,402,697 
(17%). Proposition 56 revenues were higher than budgeted, offsetting the Proposition 10 revenues, which came 
in lower than anticipated. Total expenditures were less than budgeted due to under-spending in program areas 
due to staff vacancies and COVID-19 related restrictions. 
 
Capital Assets and Debt Administration 
 
 



 
First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2022 

 
 

9 

Capital Assets 
 
Revenues came in $596,937 below the budgeted amount (8%). Expenditures were under budget by $2,402,697 
(17%). Proposition 56 revenues were higher than budgeted, offsetting the Proposition 10 revenues, which came 
in lower than anticipated. Total expenditures were less than budgeted due to under-spending in program areas 
due to staff vacancies and COVID-19 related restrictions. 
 
Long Term Obligations 
 
The Commission’s long-term obligations are the long-term portion of compensated absences and lease liability 
at year-end. These liabilities increased $3,287,753 from the previous year, mostly due to the recognition of a 
lease liability of $3,807,789 due to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases.  
 
Economic Outlook and Major Initiatives 
 
California Proposition 10 tobacco tax revenues decreased in FY21/22 as tobacco sales continued its downward 
trajectory. Proposition 10 income will continue to drop in FY22/23 but will be offset by Proposition 56 backfill. It 
is anticipated that revenue will then continue to decline each year thereafter as tobacco consumption declines 
in California. 
 
Additional Proposition 10 revenue decline is projected due to potential flavors ban regulation on tobacco. 
Flavors ban legislation is included in the November 2022 ballot and if upheld the forecast is that revenue is going 
downward at an annual reduction of 1.7% and would increase to a 3.2% decline in the coming years. Overall, 
there is a clear downward trend in the coming years.  
 
The Commission concluded activities approved in the 2021-2023 strategic plan for FY 21/22 without using 
reserves to sustain program-funding levels. 
 
Contacting the Commission's Financial Management 
 
This annual report is intended to provide the community with a general overview of the Commission's finances. 
Questions about this report should be directed to the Commission's Executive Director at 4005 Port Chicago 
Highway, Suite 120, Concord, California 94520. 
 



 

See Notes to Financial Statements   10 

First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 
Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2022 
 
 

Governmental
Activities

Assets
Current Assets

Cash and investments 19,033,072$    
Accounts receivable 240,647            
Due from other governments 1,549,447         
Prepaid expense 167,893            

Total Current Assets 20,991,059      

Noncurrent Assets
Note receivable 107,000            
Net pension asset 763,759            
Net OPEB asset 106,617            
Capital assets, nondepreciable 331,538            
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation/amortization 7,638,274         

Total Noncurrent Assets 8,947,188         

Total Assets 29,938,247      

Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred outflows related to pensions 1,576,771         
Deferred outflows related to OPEB 144,626            

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,721,397         

Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable 325,434            
Grants and contracts payable 1,400,427         
Grants and contracts payable to related parties 36,104              
Accrued wages and benefits 299,128            
Unearned grant revenue 150,010            
Compensated absences, current portion 31,118              
Lease liability, current portion 251,640            

Total Current Liabilities 2,493,861         



 

See Notes to Financial Statements   11 

First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 
Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2022 
 
 

Governmental
Activities

Noncurrent Liabilities
Compensated absences 280,057$          
Lease liability 3,823,491         

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 4,103,548         

Total Liabilities 6,597,409         

Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred inflows related to pensions 2,807,107         
Deferred inflows related to OPEB 332,020            

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 3,139,127         

Net position
Net investment in capital assets 3,894,681         
Restricted for

Dean & Margaret Lesher Foundation - Ready Kids 230,000            
Unrestricted 17,798,427      

Total Net Position 21,923,108$    

 



 

See Notes to Financial Statements   12 

First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 
Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 
 

Net (Expense)
Program  Revenue and Changes
Revenues in Net Position

 Operating Grants Governmental 
Governmental Activities Expenses And Contributions Activities

Child development 12,088,238$               12,639,287$               551,049$                       
Interest on leases 16,844                         -                                    (16,844)                          

Total governmental activities 12,105,082$               12,639,287$               534,205                         

General Revenues
Investment income 98,982                           
Unrealized loss (245,573)                        
Miscellaneous 35,263                           

Total General Revenues (111,328)                        

Change in Net Position 422,877                         

Net Position, July 1 21,500,231                   

Net Position, June 30 21,923,108$                 

 
 



 

See Notes to Financial Statements   13 

First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 
Governmental Fund Balance Sheet 

June 30, 2022 
 
 

General Fund
Assets

Cash and investments 19,033,072$    
Accounts receivable 240,647            
Due from other governments 1,549,447         
Prepaid expense 167,893            
Note receivable 107,000            

Total Assets 21,098,059$    

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities
Accounts payable 325,434$          
Grants and contracts payable 1,400,427         
Grants and contracts payable to related parties 36,104              
Accrued wages and benefits 299,128            
Unearned grant revenue 150,010            

Total Liabilities 2,211,103         

Fund Balances
Nonspendable 274,893            
Restricted 230,000            
Assigned 4,649,586         
Unassigned 13,732,477      

Total Fund Balances 18,886,956      

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 21,098,059$    

 



 

See Notes to Financial Statements   14 

First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 
Reconciliation of Governmental Fund Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2022 
 
 
Fund balance of governmental fund 18,886,956$       

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of 
Net Position are different because:

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation/amortization, used in governmental 
activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.  7,969,812            

Deferred inflows and outflows of resources related to the net pension liability
are not due and payable in the current period and therefore, are not reported
in the funds: 

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 1,576,771            
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (2,807,107)          

Deferred inflows and outflows of resources related to the net OPEB liability
are not due and payable in the current period and therefore, are not reported
in the funds: 

Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB 144,626               
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB (332,020)              

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore   
are not reported in the funds.

Net pension asset 763,759               
Net OPEB asset 106,617               
Lease liability (4,075,131)          
Compensated absences (311,175)              

Net Position of Governmental Activities 21,923,108$       

 



 

See Notes to Financial Statements  15 

First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 
Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 
 

 General Fund
Revenues

Prop 10 Tobacco Tax 6,105,031$      
Prop 56 Backfill 2,046,138         
Grant income 4,488,118         
Interest income 98,982              
Unrealized loss (245,573)           
Other revenue 35,263              

Total Revenues 12,527,959      

Expenditures
Current

Program Expenditures  
Early care and education 1,291,834         
Family support 2,893,923         
Early intervention 1,919,847         
Community information and education 154,440            
Salaries and employee benefits 3,131,503         
Other program expenditures 998,249            

Strategic Information & Planning:
Salaries and employee benefits 195,517            
Other evaluation expenditures 126,038            

Administrative
Salaries and employee benefits 887,153            
Other administrative expenditures 440,393            

Capital outlay 3,831,862         
Debt Service

Principal 121,658            
Interest 16,844              

Total Expenditures 16,009,261      

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures (3,481,302)       

Other financing sources (uses)
Lease issuance 3,768,418         

Total other financing sources (uses) 3,768,418         

Net change in fund balance 287,116            

Fund balance, July 1 18,599,840      

Fund balance, June 30 18,886,956$    



 

See Notes to Financial Statements   16 

First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 
Reconciliation of the Change in Fund Balance to the Change in Net Position 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 
 
Net change in fund balance - total governmental fund 287,116$          

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities 
differs from the amounts reported in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balance because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the 
Statement of Activities the costs of capital assets are expensed
over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. 

Depreciation expense (268,974)           

Compensated absences expenses reported in the Statement of Activities 
do not require the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported 
as expenditures in governmental funds.  This amount represents the net change 
in the compensated  absences liability. 19,006              

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current 
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of
long-term debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental 
funds. The issuance of debt increases long-term liabilities
and the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement
of net position. 

Capital leases principal payments 121,658            
Issuance of leases (3,768,418)       

Governmental funds report OPEB plan contributions as expenditures. However, in the 
Statement of Activities, OPEB expense is measured as the change in net OPEB liability 
and the amortization of deferred outflows and inflows related to OPEB. The following 
amounts reflect changes in the OPEB related balances.

Change in deferred outflows related to OPEB 97,395              
Change in deferred inflows related to OPEB (177,657)           
Change in net OPEB asset 122,539            

Governmental funds report pension contributions as expenditures. However, in the 
Statement of Activities, pension expense is measured as the change in net pension 
liability and the amortization of deferred outflows and inflows related to pensions. 
The following amounts reflect changes in the pension related balances.

Change in deferred outflows related to pensions 891,457            
Change in deferred inflows related to pensions (1,983,874)       
Change in net pension asset 1,250,767         

Change in net position of governmental activities 422,877$          

 



 

17 

First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 
 
 
Note 1 -  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Reporting Entity 
 
First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission (Commission) was established by the Contra Costa 
County Board of Supervisors. The Commission was established to implement the provisions of Proposition (Prop) 
10 adopted on November 3, 1998. The Board of Supervisors originally appointed nine Commission members and 
nine Alternate members on September 1, 1999. One of the Commissioner positions will be occupied by a 
member of the County Board of Supervisors and will serve a one-year term, three of the Commissioner positions 
will be occupied by employees of Contra Costa County and will serve without term limit, and the remaining five 
Commissioner positions will consist of representatives from various organizations or recipients of services and 
will be appointed for three-year terms. The mission of the Commission is, in partnership with parents, 
caregivers, communities, public and private organizations, advocates and county government, to foster optimal 
development of children, prenatally to five years of age. The Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors appoints 
members of the Commission and may remove any Commission member at any time. The Commission is 
considered a component unit of the County of Contra Costa, California. 
 
Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus 
 
The basic financial statements of the Commission are composed of the following: 
 

• Government-wide financial statements  
• Fund financial statements  
• Notes to the basic financial statements 

 
Government-Wide Financial Statements 
 
Government-wide financial statements consist of the statement of net position and the statement of activities. 
These statements are presented on an economic resources measurement focus. All economic resources and 
obligations of the reporting government are reported in the financial statements. 
 
The government-wide financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Under the 
accrual basis of accounting all assets, liabilities and deferred outflows and inflows of the Commission are 
included on the statement of net position. The difference between the Commission’s assets, liabilities, deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources is net position. Net position represents the resources 
the Commission has available for use in providing services. The Commission’s spending priority is to spend 
restricted resources first, followed by unrestricted. The Commission’s net position is classified as follows:  
 
Net investment in Capital Assets – This amount represents the Commission’s capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation and leased assets, net of accumulated amortization.  
 
Restricted Net Position – This category represents restrictions imposed on the use of the Commission’s 
resources by parties outside of the government or by law through constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation. 



 
First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

 
 

18 

Unrestricted – This category represents neither restrictions nor investment in capital assets and may be used by 
the Commission for any purpose though they may not be necessarily liquid. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
The fund financial statements consist of the balance sheet and the statement of revenues, expenditures and 
changes in fund balance of the Commission’s general fund. These statements are presented on a current 
financial resources measurement focus. Generally, only current assets and current liabilities are included on the 
balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance for the governmental fund 
generally presents increases (revenues) and decreases (expenditures) in current resources. All operations of the 
Commission are accounted for in the general fund.  
 
The fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the 
modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and 
available. Prop 10 Tobacco Tax revenue, interest and certain grant payments are accrued when their receipt 
occurs within ninety (90) days after the end of the accounting period so as to be both measurable and available. 
Expenditure-driven grant revenues are accrued when their receipt occurs within one year. 
 
Capital assets 
 
Capital assets and leased assets are not considered to be financial resources and therefore, are not reported as 
assets in the fund financial statements. Capital assets are recorded at cost, net of accumulated depreciation in 
the government-wide financial statements. Leased assets are recorded at the present value of the lease 
payments at the inception of the lease, net of accumulated amortization. 
 
The Commission capitalizes assets with a cost in excess of $5,000 and a useful life greater than one year. The 
Commission depreciates capital assets using a straight-line method over the estimated useful life of each asset. 
Leased assets are reported as “right to use” assets and are amortized over the shorter of the asset’s useful life or 
the lease term. The estimated useful life used for the depreciable capital assets and leased assets, ranges from 5 
to 10 years. 
 
Compensated Absences 
 
Compensated absence obligations are considered long-term in nature and are reported in the fund financial 
statements as expenditures in the period paid or when due and payable at year-end under the modified accrual 
basis of accounting. The compensated absences have been accrued in the government-wide financial 
statements and are included in long-term liabilities. 
 
Compensated absences consist of employee earned vacation time and personal holiday time and are accrued by 
the Commission when earned by the employee. Unused vacation time and personal holiday may be 
accumulated up to a specified maximum and are paid at the time of termination from Commission employment. 
 



 
First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

 
 

19 

Grants and Contracts Payable 
 
The grants and contracts payable account represents amounts due to the contracted services providers 
implementing programs as part of the four initiatives established in the strategic plan approved by the 
Commission. The payable balance consists of the fiscal year’s fourth quarter payments due to the service 
providers. 
 
Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB) 
 
For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability/(asset), deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the First 5 Contra 
Costa Retiree Benefits Plan (Plan) and additions to/deductions from the Plan's fiduciary net position have been 
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Plan. For this purpose, the Plan recognizes benefit 
payments when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value, 
except for money market investments and participating interest-earning investment contracts that have a 
maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less, which are reported at cost. 
 
Pensions 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability/(asset), deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to pensions and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the First 5 
Contra Costa Children and Families Commission’s Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association 
(CCCERA) plan and additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the 
same basis as they are reported by CCCERA. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee 
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are 
reported at fair value. 
 
Cash 
 
The Commission maintains all of its cash in the Contra Costa Treasury. The County’s investment pool operates in 
accordance with appropriate state laws and regulations. The method used to determine the value of the 
participant’s equity withdrawn is based on the book value, amortized cost, plus accrued interest, multiplied by 
the Commission’s percentage at the date of such withdrawal, which approximates fair value.  
 
The Commission categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy established 
by generally accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy, which has three levels, is based on the 
valuation inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for 
identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant to other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant 
unobservable inputs. The Commission does not have any investments that are measured using Level 3 inputs. 
Money market investments that have remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one-year or less and 
guaranteed investment contracts are measured at amortized cost. 
 



 
First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

 
 

20 

The Commission is a participant in the Contra Costa Treasurer’s Pool (County Pool). The County Pool was rated 
by Standard & Poor’s (S&P) on December 13, 2017. The County Pool was assigned a fund credit quality rating of 
“AAAf” and a fund volatility rating of “S1”+. The Contra Costa County Treasury Oversight Committee conducts 
County Pool oversight. Cash on deposit in the County Pool at June 30, 2022, is stated at fair value. The County 
Pool values participant shares on an amortized cost basis during the year and adjusts to fair value at year-end. 
For further information regarding the County Pool, refer to the County of Contra Costa Annual Financial Report.  
 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the 
United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the 
financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.  
 
Fund Balance  
 
Fund balance is classified based on the extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed 
upon the use of the resources reported in governmental funds. The Commission has established the following 
classifications and definitions of fund balance for the year ended June 30, 2022: 
 
Nonspendable – Resources that cannot be spent because they are not in an expendable form (e.g., prepaid 
expense) or must be maintained intact (e.g. endowment principal). 
 
Restricted – Resources that are constrained to specific purposes by an external provider (e.g. grantors, 
contributors, governmental laws and regulations) or by constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
 
Committed – Resources with self-imposed limitations and require both a formal action of the highest level of 
decision-making authority (Board of Commissioners) and the same formal action to remove or modify the 
limitations. The formal action for the Board of Commissioners is a vote to commit funds for a specific purpose.  
 
Assigned – The assigned portion of fund balance reflects the Commission’s intended use of resources, which can 
be established either by the Commission Board or the Executive Director. The “assigned” fund balance is similar 
to the “committed” fund balance, with the difference that Commission formal action is not necessary to assign 
funds or later modify or remove them. Assigned funds may include the appropriation of a portion of existing 
fund balance sufficient to eliminate a projected deficit in the subsequent year’s budget or funding that has been 
set aside for previously executed legally enforceable contracts, such as a multi-year lease. 
 
Unassigned – Resources that cannot be reported in any other classification.  
 
The Commission’s spending priority is to spend restricted fund balance first, followed by committed, assigned 
and unassigned fund balance. 
 
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
 
In addition to assets, the statement of net position also reports a separate section for deferred outflows of 
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption 
of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) 
until then. The Commission reports deferred outflows related to pensions and OPEB. 



 
First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

 
 

21 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position also reports a separate section for deferred inflows of 
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of 
net position that applies to a future period. The Commission reports deferred inflows related to pensions and 
OPEB.  
 
Effect of New Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Pronouncements 
 
GASB Statement No. 87 – In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of this Statement 
is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial 
reporting for leases; enhancing the comparability of financial statements between governments; and also 
enhancing the relevance, reliability (representational faithfulness), and consistency of information about the 
leasing activities of governments. This Statement is effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021. 
The implementation of this Statement resulted in an adjustment to beginning balances of capital assets and 
long-term liabilities. See Note 15 for further details.  
 
GASB Statement No. 89 – In June 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred 
Before the End of a Construction Period. The objectives of this Statement are (a) to enhance the relevance and 
comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (b) to 
simplify accounting for certain interest costs. This Statement is effective for reporting periods beginning after 
December 15, 2020. The implementation of this Statement did not have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 
 
GASB Statement No. 92 – In January 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020. The objectives of 
this Statement are to enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting to improve the consistency of 
authoritative literature by addressing practices issues that have been identified during implementation and 
application of certain GASB Statements. The Statement is effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 
2021. The implementation of this Statement did not have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 
GASB Statement No. 93 – In March 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered 
Rates. The objective of this Statement is to address the accounting and financial reporting implications that 
result from the replacement of an interbank offered rate (IBOR). The Statement is effective for reporting periods 
beginning after June 15, 2021. The implementation of this Statement did not have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 
 
GASB Statement No. 97 – In June 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, 
and Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans – 
An Amendment of GASB Statement No.14 and No.84 and A Supersession of GASB Statement No.32. The 
objective of this Statement is (1) increase consistency and comparability related to the reporting of fiduciary 
component units in circumstances in which a potential component unit does not have a governing board and the 
primary government performs the duties that a governing board typically would perform; (2) mitigate costs 
associated with the reporting of certain defined contribution pension plans, defined contribution other 
postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans, and employee benefit plans other than pension plans or OPEB plans 



 
First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

 
 

22 

(other employee benefit plans) as fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund financial statements; and  
(3) enhance the relevance, consistency, and comparability of the accounting and financial reporting for Internal 
Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 deferred compensation plans (Section 457 plans) that meet the definition of a 
pension plan and for benefits provided through those plans. The Statement is effective for reporting periods 
beginning after June 15, 2021. The implementation of this Statement did not have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 
 
 
Note 2 -  Cash and Investments 
 
Cash and investments consisted of the following at June 30, 2022: 
 
Cash in Contra Costa County Pool 19,031,572$    
Imprest cash 1,500                

Total Cash and Investments 19,033,072$    

 
Investment Policy 
 
The Commission adopted a resolution in February 2001 delegating investment authority to the Contra Costa 
County Treasurer (Treasurer) and specifying that the Commission “will continue to advise how the Children and 
Families Trust Funds are to be invested”. The Executive Director is authorized by the Commission’s Board 
approved Consolidated Financial Policies to invest in securities of varying maturity according to cash flow and 
long-term needs. Investments not specifically directed by the Commission to be invested separately are 
maintained with the Treasurer in the County investment pool (Pool). On a quarterly basis, the Treasurer 
allocates interest to participants based upon their average daily balances. Required disclosure information 
regarding the classification of investments and other deposit and investment risk disclosures can be found in the 
County's Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR). The County’s financial statements may be obtained by 
contacting the County of Contra Costa's Auditor-Controller's office at 625 Court Street, Martinez, California 
94553. The Contra Costa County Treasury Oversight Committee oversees the Treasurer's investments and 
policies. Investments held in the Pool are available on demand and are stated at their fair value. 
 
Interest Rate Risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the measurement of how changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value 
of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the more sensitive to changes in market 
interest rates of its fair value. The County manages its exposure to declines in fair value of Pool investments by 
investing in securities that have a term remaining to maturity in less than five years, unless the legislative body 
has granted express authority to make that investment either specifically or as part of an investment program 
approved by the legislative body no less than three months prior to the investment. Information about the 
sensitivity of the fair value of the Commission investments to market interest rate fluctuations is provided in the 
following table. 
 



 
First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

 
 

23 

As of June 30, 2022, the Commission had the following investments: 
 

WAM
Fair Value Years

County Investment Pool 19,031,572$    0.68

Total Investments 19,031,572$    

Investment

 
Credit Risk  
 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the 
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating 
organization the Commission’s investment in the County Investment Pool is not rated.  
 
Custodial Credit Risk 
 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the counterparty to a transaction, the Commission 
will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an 
outside party.  
 
Required disclosure information regarding the categorization of invests and other deposit and investment risk 
disclosures can be found in the County’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report which may be obtained by 
contacting the County of Contra Costa's Auditor-Controller's office at 625 Court Street, Martinez, California 
94553.  
 
Fair Value Measurements 
 
The Commission categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally 
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of 
the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets, Level 2 inputs are significant 
other observable inputs and Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. As of June 30, 2022, the 
Commission’s funds were invested in the Contra Costa County Investment Pool. 
 
In instances where inputs used to measure fair value fall into different levels in the above fair value hierarchy, 
fair value measurements in their entirety are categorized based on the lowest level input that is significant to 
the valuation.  
 
Deposits and withdrawals are made on the basis of $1 and not fair value, accordingly, the Commission’s 
proportionate share of investments in the Contra Costa County Investment Pool at June 30, 2022, of 
$19,031,572 is an uncategorized input, not defined as a level 1, level 2 or level 3 input and approximates fair 
value. The carrying amount of deposits held with the County Pool was $19,264,674. 
 
 



 
First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

 
 

24 

Note 3 -  Compensated Absences 
 
Changes in the compensated absences liability for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, are summarized as 
follows:  
 

Balance
Beginning Balance Amount Due

of Year Increases Decreases End of Year within one year

Compensated Absences 330,181$       18,943$          (37,949)$        311,175$       31,118$          

 
 
Note 4 -  Due from Other Governments 
 
The due from other governments account represents amounts due to the Commission from the California 
Children and Families Commission (“State Commission”) for Prop 10 related revenues and other governmental 
agencies. The amounts due to the Commission at June 30, 2022, were as follows: 
 
Due from State Commission

Prop 10 revenue for
June 2022 529,804$          
SMIF 3,879                

Workforce Pathways 4,601                
First 5 ACE 294,400            
First 5 CA IMPACT 352,365            
First 5 San Francisco - HUB IMPACT 68,537              
First 5 CSPP 71,471              
First 5 QCC 75,880              
First 5 CA Dual Language Learner (DLL) 148,510            

Total due from other governments 1,549,447$      

 
 
Note 5 -  Notes Receivable 
 
In November 2005, the Commission entered into a forgivable loan agreement with the Perinatal Council (now 
known as Brighter Beginnings) to acquire and renovate a property in Antioch, California to operate a First 5 
Center on site. The Commission loaned to the Perinatal Council $428,000 for a period of twenty years. The 
Commission agreed to forgive 25 percent of the loan on the 5th anniversary date of the issuance of the 
Certificate of Completion, 25 percent on the 10th anniversary, 25 percent on the 15th anniversary and  
25 percent at the end of the loan term. The agreement was amended as of December 7, 2020, extending the 
term to December 1, 2026. The next forgiveness date was extended by one year to December 1, 2021. The loan 
is secured by a Deed of Trust and recorded as a lien against the property. The loan does not bear interest unless 
there is a default by the Borrower, such as an unauthorized transfer of the property or change in the use of the 
site. The Commission does not anticipate receiving any cash payments from the borrower. The loan had an 
outstanding balance of $107,000 as of June 30, 2022. 



 
First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

 
 

25 

Note 6 -  Capital Assets 
 

(Restated)
Governmental activities July 1, 2021 Additions Deletions June 30, 2022

Capital assets, not being depreciated
 Land 331,538$       -$                     -$                     331,538$       

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 331,538          -                       -                       331,538          

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 4,198,414      -                       -                       4,198,414      
Furniture and fixtures 195,719          63,444            -                       259,163          

Total capital assets being depreciated 4,394,133      63,444            -                       4,457,577      

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (589,982)        (126,001)        -                       (715,983)        
Furniture and fixtures (157,136)        (12,708)           -                       (169,844)        

Total accumulated depreciation (747,118)        (138,709)        -                       (885,827)        

Governmental activities capital assets, net 3,978,553      (75,265)           -                       3,903,288      

Right to use leased assets being amortized
Right to use assets - office space 428,371          3,768,418      -                       4,196,789      

Total right to use assets being amortized 428,371          3,768,418      -                       4,196,789      

Less accumulated amortization for:
Right to use assets - office space -                       (130,265)        -                       (130,265)        

Total accumulated amortization -                       (130,265)        -                       (130,265)        

Net right to use assets 428,371          3,638,153      -                       4,066,524      

Governmental activities capital assets, net 4,406,924$    3,562,888$    -$                     7,969,812$    

Depreciation and amortization expense for the year ended June 30, 2022, amounted to $268,974 and is included 
in the child development function in the statement of activities.



 
First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

 
 

26 

Note 7 -  Leases 
 
Changes in lease liabilities during the year ended June 30, 2022 are as follows: 
 

(Restated) Due in 
Right to use assets - leased assets July 1, 2021 Additions Deletions June 30, 2022 One Year

Child development centers 428,371$          -$                       (121,658)$        306,713$          127,962$          
Admin office -                         3,768,418         -                         3,768,418         123,678            

Total right to use assets - leased assets 428,371$          3,768,418$      (121,658)$        4,075,131$      251,640$          

 
The Commission leases office space from third parties for the local First 5 centers and the administration office. 
During the current year, the Commission entered into a lease agreement as lessee for a new office. As of  
June 30, 2022, the value of the lease liability was $3,768,418. The Commission is required to make monthly 
payments of $32,487 beginning on September 1, 2022. The payments have scheduled increases of 3.0% on the 
anniversary date each year until August 2034. The lease has an implicit interest rate of 5.0%.  
 
In prior years, the Commission had entered into various lease agreements as lessee for the use of office space to 
run child development centers. As of June 30, 2022, the lease liability was $306,713. The Commission is required 
to make monthly payments ranging from $1,310 - $6,750 with annual escalators of 3.0% each year on the 
respective anniversary dates. These leases run through June 30, 2027. The leases all have implied interest rates 
of 5.0%.  
 
The Commission recognized $130,265 in amortization expense and $16,844 in interest expense during the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2022.  
 
Remaining principal and interest payments on leases are as follows: 
 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, Principal Interest

251,640$          199,874$          
347,548            183,082            
272,468            167,495            
292,672            153,571            
322,008            138,285            

1,991,266         420,121            
597,529            18,949              

4,075,131$      1,281,377$      

2033-2035
2028-2032

2023
2024
2025
2026
2027

 
 
 



 
First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

 
 

27 

Note 8 -  Fund Balance 
 
Fund balance is classified using a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a government is bound to 
observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in governmental funds. Fund balance at 
June 30, 2022 consisted of the following: 
 
Fund Balance General Fund

Nonspendable
Prepaid Expense 167,893$          
Note Receivable - Perinatal 107,000            

Restricted
D&M Lesher Foundation - ReadyKids 230,000            

Assigned
Elimination of FY22/23 budget deficit 2,242,799         
Leases 2,406,787         

Unassigned
Unassigned 13,732,477      

Total Fund Balance 18,886,956$    

 
 
Note 9 -  Contingencies 
 
The Commission is involved in various legal proceedings from time to time in the normal course of business. In 
management’s opinion, the Commission is not involved in any legal proceeding that will have a material adverse 
effect on financial position or changes in financial position of the Commission. 
 
 
Note 10 -  Related Party Transactions 
 
The legally required composition of the Children and Families Commission includes a County Supervisor, 
Directors of County agencies and representatives of agencies and constituencies concerned with children. Some 
of the programs funded by the Commission are operated by organizations represented by Commissioners and 
Alternate Commissioners. Commissioners and Alternate Commissioners must abstain from voting on issues and 
participating in discussions directly related to their respective organizations.  
 
The following table shows expenditures with agencies represented by Commissioners and Alternate 
Commissioners for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022: 
 

Fiscal Year 2021-22
Expenditures

CoCoKids Inc. 155,039$                
Contra Costa County 852,455                  
C.O.P.E Counseling Options and Parent Education 183,482                  

Total 1,190,976$             

Related Party



 
First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

 
 

28 

The following table shows balances due to agencies represented by Commissioners and Alternate 
Commissioners: 
 

Balances Due
June 30, 2022

CoCoKids Inc. 17,756$                  
C.O.P.E Counseling Options and Parent Education 18,348                     

Total 36,104$                  

Related Party

 
The following table shows revenue with agencies represented by Commissioners and Alternate Commissioners 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022: 
 

Fiscal Year
2021-22 Revenue

Contra Costa County 86,741$                  

Related Party

 
The Commission earned revenue totaling $86,741 from Contra Costa County during the year ended June 30, 
2022. This revenue was solely for Health Services, which includes Public Health and Behavioral Health Services 
Division/Mental Health. 
 
The Commission incurred expenditures totaling $852,455 for County services provided during the year ended  
June 30, 2022 for administrative and general services. The County provides banking, investment and legal 
services, payroll and benefits administration, computer hardware and technical support, facility maintenance, 
and other administrative services to the Commission. The Commission participates in the County’s risk 
management programs (commercial and self-insurance programs) for general and automobile liability insurance 
and personal property. In addition, the County purchases worker’s compensation and crime insurance on behalf 
of the Commission.  
 
 
Note 11 -  Program Evaluation 
 
In accordance with the Standards and Procedures for Audits of California Counties Participating in the California 
Children and Families Program, issued by the California State Controller, the Commission is required to disclose 
the amounts expended during the fiscal year on program evaluation. Program evaluation costs pertain to those 
activities undertaken to support the collection, production, analysis and presentation of evaluation information 
for Commission management, Commissioners and other interested parties. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Commission expended $321,553 for program evaluation. 
 



 
First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

 
 

29 

Note 12 -  Defined Benefit Pension Plan 
 
Plan Description 
 
Plan Administration  
 
The Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association (CCCERA) was established by the County of Contra 
Costa in 1945. CCCERA is governed by the County Employees’ Retirement Law of 1937 (California Government 
Code Section 31450 et. seq), the California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA), and the 
regulations, procedures, and policies adopted by CCCERA’s Board of Retirement. CCCERA is a cost-sharing 
multiple employer public employee retirement association whose main function is to provide service retirement, 
disability, death and survivor benefits to the General and Safety members employed by the County of Contra 
Costa. CCCERA also provides retirement benefits to the employee members for 16 other participating agencies 
which are members of CCCERA, including the First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission. CCCERA 
issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at www.cccera.org. 
 
The management of CCCERA is vested with the CCCERA Board of Retirement. The Board consists of twelve 
trustees. Of the twelve members, three are alternates. Four trustees are appointed by the County Board of 
Supervisors; four trustees (including the Safety alternate) are elected by CCCERA’s active members; two trustees 
(including one alternate) are elected by the retired membership. Board members serve three-year terms, except 
for the County Treasurer who is elected by the general public and serves during his tenure in office. 
 
Benefits Provided  
 
CCCERA provides service retirement, disability, death and survivor benefits to eligible employees. All regular full-
time employees of the County of Contra Costa or participating agencies become members of CCCERA effective 
on the first day of the first full pay period after employment. Part-time employees in permanent positions must 
work at least 20 hours a week in order to become a member of CCCERA. Commission employees are classified as 
General Tier 1 (Enhanced). New Commission employees who become a General Member on or after January 1, 
2013 are designated as PEPRA General Tier 4 and are subject to the provisions of California Government Code 
7522 et seq. 
 
General members hired prior to January 1, 2013, are eligible to retire once they attain the age of 70 regardless 
of service or at age 50 and have acquired 10 or more years of retirement service credit. A member with 30 years 
of service is eligible to retire regardless of age. General members who are first hired on or after January 1, 2013, 
are eligible to retire once they have attained the age of 70 regardless of service or at age 52 and have acquired 
five years of retirement service credit. 
 
The retirement benefits the member will receive is based upon age at retirement, final average compensation, 
years of retirement service credit and retirement plan and tier. General Tier 1 benefits are calculated pursuant 
to the provisions of Sections §31676.16. The monthly allowance is equal to 1/50th of final compensation 
multiplied by years of accrued retirement service credit multiplied by the age factor from §31676.16. General 
members with membership dates on or after January 1, 2013 (PEPRA General Tier 4) are calculated pursuant to 
the provisions found in California Government Code Section §7522.20(a). The monthly allowance is equal to the 
final compensation multiplied by years of accrued retirement credit multiplied by the age factor from Section 
§7522.20(a). 

http://www.cccera.org/


 
First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

 
 

30 

For members with membership dates before January 1, 2013, the maximum monthly retirement allowance is 
100 percent of final compensation. There is no final compensation limit on the maximum retirement benefit for 
members with membership dates on or after January 1, 2013. 
 
Final average compensation consists of the highest 12 consecutive months for General Tier 1, and the highest 36 
consecutive months for PEPRA General Tier 4.  
 
The member may elect an unmodified retirement allowance, or, choose an optional retirement allowance. The 
unmodified retirement allowance provides the highest monthly benefit and a 60 percent continuance to an 
eligible surviving spouse or domestic partner. An eligible surviving spouse or domestic partner is one married to 
or registered with the member one year prior to the effective retirement date or at least two years prior to the 
date of death and has attained age 55 on or prior to the date of death. There are four optional retirement 
allowances the member may choose. Each of the optional retirement allowances requires a reduction in the 
unmodified retirement allowance in order to allow the member the ability to provide certain benefits to a 
surviving spouse, domestic partner, or named beneficiary having an insurable interest in the life of the member.  
 
CCCERA provides an annual cost-of-living benefit to all retirees. The cost-of-living adjustment, based upon the 
Consumer Price Index for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose Area, is capped at 3.0 percent for General Tier 1 
and PEPRA General Tier 4. The plan also provides a post retirement lump sum death benefit of $5,000 to the 
member’s beneficiary (§31789.5) paid from the Post Retirement Death Benefit Reserve.  
 
The County of Contra Costa and participating agencies contribute to the retirement plan based upon actuarially 
determined contribution rates adopted by the Board of Retirement. Employer contribution rates are adopted 
annually based upon recommendations received from CCCERA’s actuary after the completion of the annual 
actuarial valuation. Members are required to make contributions to CCCERA regardless of the retirement plan or 
tier in which they are included.  
 
The Plan’s provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2022 are summarized as follows: 
 

Prior to On or after 
Hire date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013

Formula 2.0% @ 55 2.5% @ 67
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 70 (1) 70 (2)
Monthly benefits, as a % of annual salary 2.0% to 2.7% 1.0% to 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates 8.02% - 15.84% 8.91% - 11.90%
Required employer contribution rates 30.10% 24.76%

(1) Or 50 with ten years of service credit
(2) Or 52 with five years of service credit

General

 



 
First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

 
 

31 

Contributions - Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer 
contribution rates for all public employers are determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be 
effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for the Plan are 
determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement 
Association. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits 
earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The 
Commission is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the 
contribution rate of employees.  
 
For the year ended June 30, 2022, contributions to the plan were as follows: 
 

General

Contributions - employer 858,000$               

 
Plan's Collective Net Pension Liability (Asset) 
 
As of June 30, 2022, the Commission reported an asset of $763,759 for its proportionate share of the Plan's 
collective net pension asset. 
 
The Commission's net pension asset for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the total net pension 
liability/(asset). The net pension asset of the Plan is measured as of December 31, 2021, and the total pension 
liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability/(asset) was determined by an actuarial valuation 
as of December 31, 2021. The Commission's proportion of the net pension liability/(asset) is based on the 
Commission's actual 2021 compensation relative to the actual compensation of all participating employers. The 
Commission's proportionate share of the net pension liability/(asset), measured at December 31, 2020 and 2021 
was as follows: 
 

General

Proportion - December 31, 2020 0.106%
Proportion - December 31, 2021 0.314%

Change in Proportion 0.208%

 
For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Commission recognized pension expense of $188,054. At June 30, 2022, 
the Commission reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Changes in proportion and differences between the Commission's 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 875,522$               277,642$               

Changes in assumptions or other inputs 539,935                  66,321                    
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on plan 

investments -                               2,445,843              
Difference between expected and actual experience 161,314                  17,301                    

Total 1,576,771$            2,807,107$            
 



 
First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

 
 

32 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will 
be recognized as pension expense as follows: 
 

2023 (99,653)$                
2024 (645,912)                
2025 (237,485)                
2026 (247,286)                

Total (1,230,336)$           

Year ended June 30

 
Actuarial Assumptions 
 
The total pension liability in the December 31, 2021 actuarial valuation was determined using the following 
actuarial assumptions: 
 

Valuation Date
Measurement Date
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions

Discount Rate 6.75%
Inflation 2.75%
Payroll Growth 3.25% (1)
Projected Salary Increase 3.50% - 14.00%
Investment Rate of Return 6.75% (2)

Pub-2010 General Healthy Retiree
Amount-Weighted Above-

Mortality

(1) Inflation of 2.75% per year plus "across the board" real salary increases of 0.5% per year
(2) Net of pension plan investment expenses
(3) Projected 30 years generationally with the two-dimensional MP-2018 projection scale

Miscellaneous
December 31, 2021
December 31, 2021

 Median Mortality Table  (3)

 
The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumption used in the December 31, 2021, 
valuation was based on the results of an experience study for the period January 1, 2018 through  
December 31, 2020. 
 
Changes of assumptions 
 
CCCERA approved the following key assumption changes as compared to the measurement period ended 
December 31, 2020: 1) investment rate of return and the discount rate were both adjusted from 7.00% to 
6.75%, 2) inflation was adjusted from 2.75% to 2.50%, and 3) projected salary increases were adjusted from 
3.75% - 15.25% to 3.50% - 14.00%. 
 



 
First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

 
 

33 

Discount Rate 
 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.75 percent for the Plan. The projection of 
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the 
current contribution rate and that the Commission's contributions will be made at the current contribution rates 
and that employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates. 
For this purpose, only employee and employer contributions that are intended to fund benefits for current plan 
members and their beneficiaries are included. Projected employer contributions that are intended to fund the 
service costs for future plan members and their beneficiaries, as well as projected contributions from future plan 
members, are not included. Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s Fiduciary Net Position was projected to be 
available to make all projected future benefit payments for current plan members. Therefore, the long-term 
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to 
determine the total pension liability as of December 31, 2021. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of inflation) are developed for each 
major asset class. These returns are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting 
the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage, adding expected inflation and 
subtracting expected investment expenses and a risk margin. The target allocation and projected arithmetic real 
rates of return for each major asset class, after deducting inflation but before deducting investment expenses, 
used in the derivation of the long-term expected investment rate of return assumption are summarized in the 
following table: 
 

Target Long-Term 

Large Cap U.S. Equity 10.00% 5.40%
Small Cap Equity 3.00% 6.17%
Developed International Equity 10.00% 6.13%
Emerging Markets Equity 9.00% 8.17%
Core Fixed 4.00% 0.39%
Short-Term Govt/Credit 14.00% -0.14%
Cash & Equivalents 3.00% -0.73%
Private Equity 15.00% 10.83%
Private Credit 13.00% 5.93%
Infrastructure 3.00% 6.30%
Value Add Real Estate 5.00% 7.20%
Opportunistic Real Estate 5.00% 8.50%
Risk Parity 3.00% 3.80%
Hedge Funds 3.00% 2.40%

Total 100%

Asset Class

 



 
First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

 
 

34 

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability(Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate 
 
The following presents the Commission's proportionate share of the net pension liability/(asset) for the Plan, 
calculated using the discount rate for the Plan, as well as what the Commission's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability/(asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 
1-percentage-point higher than the current rate: 
 

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

Discount Rate 5.75% 6.75% 7.75%

Commission's Net Pension Liability (Asset) 2,497,135$      (763,759)$        (3,434,644)$       

 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
 
Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CCCERA 
financial reports. 
 
 
Note 13 -  Other Postemployment Healthcare Benefits 
 
General Information about the OPEB Plan  
 
Plan Description 
 
The Commission’s defined benefit OPEB plan provides benefits for employees hired prior to January 1, 2007 and 
who retire directly from the Commission on or after age 50 with at least 10 years of service. Part-time 
employees receive pro-rated service. The Commission’s OPEB plan is an agent multiple employer defined benefit 
OPEB plan administered by California Employees Retirement Benefit Trust (CERBT). CERBT issues a publicly 
available financial report that can be obtained at www.calpers.ca.gov.  
 
Benefits Provided 
 
Eligible retirees and their dependents are offered a choice of medical and dental plans through the Contra Costa 
County Employee Benefits Health Plan. The Commission provides a contribution towards the cost of medical and 
dental coverage. These contributions are fixed based on the employer subsidies in place in 2011 which varies 
based on the plan and family coverage category elected by the retiree. 
 
Employees covered by benefit terms 
 
At June 30, 2022, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms: 
 
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 4                        
Active employees 7                        

Total 11                      
 



 
First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

 
 

35 

Contributions 
 
Generally, contribution requirements of the Commission are established and may be amended by the Board of 
Commissioners. The Plan and its contribution requirements are established by the Board of Supervisors of 
Contra Costa County. The annual contribution is based on the actuarially determined contribution. Employees 
are not required to contribute to the plan. For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Commission made no cash 
contributions directly to the plan and recognized $26,161 in implicit contributions. 
 
Net OPEB Liability/(Asset) 
 
The Commission’s net OPEB liability/(asset) was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total OPEB liability used 
to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021.  
 
Actuarial assumptions 
 
The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2021, actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 
 
Inflation 2.75%
Salary increases 3%, average including inflation
Investment Rate of Return 6.5% percent, net of OPEB plan investment

expense, including inflation
Healthcare cost trend rates 7.00% for 2022 decreasing 0.25% per year to an

ultimate rate of 4.5% for 2032 and later years

Mortality rates were based on the Society of Actuaries Pub-0010 General Headcount Weighted Mortality Table 
fully generational using Scape MP-2019. The rates have been updated from the 2014 CalPERS experience study 
for the pension plan. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-block method 
in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of OPEB plan 
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to 
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the 
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of 
arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table: 
 

Target 

Global Equity 40.00%
REITS 8.00%
Global Debt Securities 40.00%
Commodities 4.00%
Inflation Assets 5.00%

Total 97.00%

Asset Class

 



 
First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

 
 

36 

Discount Rate 
 
The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 6.5 percent. The projection of cash flows used to 
determine the discount rate assumed that the Commission contributions will be made at rates equal to the 
actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan's fiduciary net position 
was projected to be available to make all projected OPEB payments for current active and inactive employees. 
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied to all periods of 
projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability. 
 
Changes in the Net OPEB Liability  
 

Total OPEB 
Liability

Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position

Net OPEB 
Liability/(Asset)

Balance at June 30, 2020 measurement date 1,023,106$      1,007,184$      15,922$            
Changes in the year

Service cost 34,537              -                         34,537              
Interest on the total OPEB liability 66,983              -                         66,983              
Differences between Expected and 

Actual Experience 138,209            -                         138,209            
Changes of Assumptions (131,848)           -                         (131,848)           
Contribution - employer -                         31,916              (31,916)             
Contribution - employee -                         -                         -                         
Net investment income -                         198,872            (198,872)           
Benefit payments, including refunds of 

employee contributions (55,152)             (55,152)             -                         
Administrative expense -                         (368)                  368                    

Net changes 52,729              175,268            (122,539)           

Balance at June 30, 2021 measurement date 1,075,835$      1,182,452$      (106,617)$        

Increase (Decrease)

 
Changes in assumptions 
 
Changes in assumptions include updating mortality rates to the most recent tables published by the Society of 
Actuaries; retirement, termination, and disability rates have been updated to rates reported under the Contra 
Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association pension plan valuation; and the healthcare cost trend rates 
have been reset to an initial rate of 7.00%.  
 



 
First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

 
 

37 

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability/(asset) to changes in the discount rate and health-care cost trend rates 
 
The following presents the net OPEB liability/(asset) of the Commission, as well as what the Commission's net 
OPEB liability/(asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.5 
percent) or 1-percentage- point higher (7.5 percent) than the current discount rate: 
 

1% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1% Increase
Discount rate 5.50% 6.50% 7.50%

Commission's net OPEB 
liability/(asset) $(2,720) $(106,617) $(196,532)

 
The following presents the net OPEB liability/(asset) of the Commission, as well as what the Commission’s net 
OPEB liability/(asset) would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point 
lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 
 

1% Decrease Current Trend Rate 1% Increase

Healthcare cost trend rates 6.00% 7.00% 8.00%
decreasing to decreasing to decreasing to 

3.50% 4.50% 5.50%
Commission's net OPEB 

liability/(asset) $(139,698) $(106,617) $(68,293)

 
OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
 
Detailed information about the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CERBT 
report.  
 
For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Commission recognized OPEB expense of $702. At June 30, 2022, the 
Commission reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from 
the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Commission contributions subsequent to measurement date 26,161$                               -$                                          
Net difference between projected and actual earnings 

on plan investments -                                            95,391                                 
Difference between expected and actual experience 118,465                               93,495                                 
Changes of assumptions -                                            143,134                               

Total 144,626$                             332,020$                             

 



 
First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

 
 

38 

The $26,161 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2023. 
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 
will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:  
 

(52,469)$                    
(53,049)                      
(52,555)                      
(56,669)                      

280                             
907                             

(213,555)$                  Total

2023
2024
2025

2027

Year ended June 30,

2026

Thereafter

 
 
Note 14 -  Risk Management 
 
The Commission is exposed to various risks of loss related to the loss of, damage to and destruction of assets 
caused by accidents, forces of nature, and the requirements of the California Labor Code. 
 
The Commission mitigates its exposure to loss through multiple risk treatment mechanisms. The Commission 
participates in the County of Contra Costa’s self-insurance program for public and automobile liability, and 
property losses, where excess insurance has been purchased through California State Association of Counties 
Excess Insurance Authority (CSAC-EIA), a joint powers authority. The Commission participates in a joint power 
authority, separate from the County’s, effected through CSAC-EIA for its workers’ compensation exposure. 
Crime insurance is covered through the purchase of commercial insurance.  
 
During the year ending June 30, 2022, the Commission had no settlements exceeding insurance coverage for 
these categories of risk. For the past three years, settlements or judgment amounts have not exceeded 
insurance provided for the Commission. 
 
 



 
First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2022 

 
 

39 

Note 15 -  Adoption of New Standard 
 
As of July 1, 2021, the Commission adopted GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. The implementation of this 
standard establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are 
financings of the right to use an underlying asset. The Statement requires recognition of certain lease assets and 
liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or 
outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. The standard also requires lessors to 
recognize a lease receivable and deferred inflow of resources. Beginning net position was restated to 
retroactively adopt the provisions of GASB Statement No. 87 as follows: 
 

Net Position, July 1, 2021 21,500,231$      

Restatement:
Right-to-use assets 428,371              
Lease liability (428,371)             

Net Position, July 1, 2021, as restated 21,500,231$      

Governmental Activities

 
As of the result of the implementation of GASB 87, Leases, $428,371 in lease liabilities for leases related to the 
Commission has been added to beginning balance presented above. As these lease liabilities are offset by an 
equal amount of lease assets, the Commission does not report a restatement to beginning net position for the 
implementation of GASB 87.



 

 

Required Supplementary Information 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

First 5 Contra Costa Children and 
Families Commission 
(a Component Unit of the County of Contra Costa, California) 
 

eidebailly.com



 

See Note to Required Supplementary Information 41 

First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance – Budget and Actual General Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 
 

Variance with
Actual Final budget -

 Original Final Amounts Positive (negative)
Revenues

Prop 10 - Tax Apportionment 9,819,565$           9,819,565$           6,105,031$           (3,714,534)$         
Prop 56 Backfill -                             -                             2,046,138             2,046,138             
First 5 California IMPACT 712,514                712,514                679,724                (32,790)                 
CSPP-COE/Preschool QRIS Block Grant 258,830                258,830                251,119                (7,711)                   
QCC-Quality Counts California 229,775                229,775                211,905                (17,870)                 
Lesher Ready Kids 235,000                235,000                230,000                (5,000)                   
MHSA Grant/Triple P 82,000                   82,000                   111,741 29,741                   
Community Engagement Grants 50,000                   50,000                   175,000 125,000                
Other public funds 1,375,898             1,375,898             2,673,629 1,297,731             
Other grants 100,000                100,000                155,000 55,000                   
Interest income 100,000                100,000                98,982                   (1,018)                   
Unrealized loss -                             -                             (245,573)               (245,573)               
Other revenue -                             -                             35,263                   35,263                   

Total Revenues 12,963,582           12,963,582           12,527,959           (435,623)               

Expenditures
Current

Program expenditures  
Early care and education 1,838,725             1,838,725             1,291,834             546,891                
Family support 3,635,391             3,635,391             2,893,923             741,468                
Early intervention 1,592,848             1,592,848             1,919,847             (326,999)               
Community Information 

and Education 858,607                858,607                154,440                704,167                
Salaries and employee benefits 3,496,329             3,496,329             3,131,503             364,826                
Other program expenditures 619,360                619,360                998,249                (378,889)               

Strategic Information & Planning:
Salaries and employee benefits 431,760                431,760                195,517                236,243                
Other evaluation expenditures 357,569                357,569                126,038                231,531                

Administrative:
Salaries and employee benefits 1,118,303             1,118,303             887,153                231,150                
Other administrative expenditures 524,203                524,203                440,393                83,810                   

Capital Outlay -                             -                             3,831,862             (3,831,862)            
Debt Service

Principal -                             -                             121,658                (121,658)               
Interest -                             -                             16,844                   (16,844)                 

Total Expenditures 14,473,095           14,473,095           16,009,261           (1,536,166)            

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures (1,509,513)            (1,509,513)            (3,481,302)            (1,971,789)            

Other financing sources (uses)
Lease issuance -                             -                             3,768,418             (3,768,418)            

Total other financing sources (uses) -                             -                             3,768,418             (3,768,418)            

Net Change in Fund Balance (1,509,513)$         (1,509,513)$         287,116                1,796,629$           

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 18,599,840           

Fund Balance, End of Year 18,886,956$        

Budgeted amounts



 

 42 

First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 
Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association – 

Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) 
Last 10 Years as of June 

 
 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Proportion of the net 
pension liability 0.141% 0.164% 0.173% 0.159% 0.202% 0.171% 0.106% 0.314%

Proportionate share of
the net pension liability
(asset) 1,683,167$  2,465,341$  2,423,899$  1,289,083$  2,881,759$  1,480,016$  487,008$     (763,759)$    

Covered payroll 1,735,009$  1,962,961$  2,140,380$  2,405,397$  2,525,004$  2,511,538$  2,398,684$  2,846,338$  

Proportionate share of
the net pension liability
/(asset) as a percentage 
of covered payroll 97.01% 125.59% 113.25% 53.59% 114.13% 58.93% 20.30% -26.83%

Plan fiduciary net position 
as a percentage of the
total pension liability 85.25% 82.24% 84.16% 91.18% 85.09% 91.46% 95.62% 102.17%

Measurement date December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, 
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

*Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation; therefore, only eight years are shown.



 

 43 

First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 
Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association – 

Schedule of Pension Contributions 
Last 10 Years as of June  

 
 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Actuarially determined contributions 594,757$     604,348$     636,711$     660,452$     659,815$     615,504$     703,170$     858,000$     

Contributions in relation to the 
acturially determined contribution 594,757        604,348        636,711        660,452        659,815        615,504        703,170        858,000        

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

Covered payroll 1,852,141$  2,025,525$  2,204,354$  2,488,297$  2,747,667$  2,607,465$  2,930,043$  2,808,304$  

Contributions as a percentage of 
covered payroll 32.11% 29.84% 28.88% 26.54% 24.01% 23.61% 24.00% 30.55%

*Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation; therefore, only eight years are shown.



 

 44 

First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 
Schedule of Changes in the Commission’s Net OPEB Liability/(Asset) 

Last 10 Years as of June  
 
 

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Total OPEB Liability
Service cost 32,608$        34,728$        35,770$        33,804$        34,537$        
Interest on the total OPEB liability 64,455          68,828          73,368          64,114          66,983          
Changes in assumptions -                     -                     (52,714)        -                     (131,848)      
Differences between expected and 

actual experience -                     -                     (158,097)      (4,415)           138,209        
Benefit payments, including refunds 

of employee contributions (27,243)        (36,565)        (32,954)        (45,214)        (55,152)        

Net change in total OPEB liability 69,820          66,991          (134,627)      48,289          52,729          

Total OPEB liability - beginning 972,633        1,042,453    1,109,444    974,817        1,023,106    

Total OPEB liability - ending (a) 1,042,453$  1,109,444$  974,817$     1,023,106$  1,075,835$  

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer 52,344$        45,720$        67,165$        85,093$        31,916$        
Net investment income 50,176          47,514          57,293          49,736          198,872        
Administrative expenses (367)              (403)              (177)              (454)              (368)              
Other expense -                     (1,021)           -                     -                     -                     
Benefit payments (27,243)        (36,565)        (32,954)        (45,214)        (55,152)        

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 74,910          55,245          91,327          89,161          175,268        
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 696,541        771,451        826,696        918,023        1,007,184    

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) 771,451        826,696        918,023        1,007,184    1,182,452    

Net OPEB liability - ending (a)-(b) 271,002$     282,748$     56,794$        15,922$        (106,617)$    

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage 
of the total OPEB liability 74.00% 74.51% 94.17% 98.44% 109.91%

Covered employee payroll 1,085,000$  1,085,000$  827,457$     852,281$     877,849$     

Net OPEB liability as percentage of covered 
employee payroll 24.98% 26.06% 6.86% 1.87% -12.15%

*Fiscal year 2018 was the first year of implementation; therefore, only five years are shown.



 

 45 

First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 
Schedule of the Commission’s OPEB Contributions 

Last 10 Years as of June  
 
 

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Actuarially determined

contributions 30,875$          35,444$          76,640$          31,916$          12,263$          

Contributions in relation to 
the actuarially 
determined contribution 30,875            35,444            76,640            31,916            26,161            

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     (13,898)$        

Covered employee payroll 1,085,000$    827,457$       852,281$       877,849$       732,387$       

Contributions as a percentage of 
covered employee payroll 2.85% 4.28% 8.99% 3.64% 3.57%

*Fiscal year 2018 was the first year of implementation; therefore, only five years are shown.



 

 46 

First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 
Note to Required Supplementary Information 

 June 30, 2022 
 
 
Note 1 -  Budget 
 
The Commission prepares and legally adopts a final budget on or before June 30th of each fiscal year. The 
Commission operations, commencing July 1st, are governed by the proposed budget, adopted by the 
Commission by June of the prior fiscal year. 
 
An operating budget is adopted each fiscal year in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
based on estimates of revenues and anticipated expenditures. Additionally, encumbrance accounting is utilized 
to assure effective budgetary control. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end represent the estimated amount 
of the expenditures ultimately to result if the unpaid contracts in process at year-end are fully performed by 
year-end or purchase commitments satisfied. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at year-end and 
encumbrance balances that will not be honored are liquidated. 
 
The legal level of budgetary control (the level on which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) is at 
the total fund level. The Commission does not establish a budget for capital outlay, debt service or other 
financing sources and uses. 
 
The Commission expenditures exceeded its appropriations by $1,536,166 due to the recognition of the inception 
of the lease for the office building.  
 



 

 

Supplementary Information 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

First 5 Contra Costa Children and 
Families Commission 
(a Component Unit of the County of Contra Costa, California) 
 

eidebailly.com



 

48 

First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 
Schedule of Expenses by Fund Source and Net Position of CCFC Funds for First 5 Programs and Activities 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 
 

Net Position
Revenue Change in  Beginning Net Position 

Program Source CCFC Funds Expenses Net Position  of Year End of Year

IMPACT CCFC Program Funds* 679,724$       679,724$       -$                     -$                     -$                     
County, Local Funds -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

* $70,094 HUB funding received from First 5 San Francisco is not included in IMPACT ($679,724).

 
 



 

  

Compliance Reports 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

First 5 Contra Costa Children and 
Families Commission 
(a Component Unit of the County of Contra Costa, California) 
 
 

eidebailly.com



 

50 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance  
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance  

with Government Auditing Standards  
 
 
To the Board of Commissioners 
First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 
Concord, California 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities and the general fund of the First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 
(Commission), a component unit of the County of Contra Costa, California (County), as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
the Commission’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated November 10, 
2022. Our report contained an emphasis of matter regarding the Commission’s adoption of 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 87, Leases, effective July 1, 2021. 
 
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Commission's 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Commission’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Commission’s 
internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,  
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance.  
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may 
exist that have not been identified. We identified certain deficiencies in internal control, described in 
the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Responses as item 2022-001 that we consider to be a 
material weakness. 

What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebailly.com
2151 River Plaza Dr., Ste. 308  |  Sacramento, CA 95833-4133  |  T 916.570.1880  |  F 916.570.1875  |  EOE



51 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Commission's financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards.  

Commission’s Response to Findings 

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the 
Commission’s response to the finding identified in our audit and described in the accompanying 
Schedule of Findings and Responses. The Commission’s response was not subjected to the other 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no 
opinion on the response. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Sacramento, California 
November 10, 2022 



 

52 

First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 
Schedule of Findings and Responses 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 
 
2022-001 Financial Reporting 
 Type of Finding: Material Weakness  

 
Criteria:  
 
Management is responsible for taking responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements. Management is responsible for ensuring that all financial records and 
related information is reliable and properly recorded.  
 
Condition:  
 
Material Weakness – During the course of our engagement, we identified material audit 
adjustments to cash (fair market value). 
 
Context: 
 
During our audit, we identified that the cash and investments balances had not been adjusted to 
the fair market value amount for amounts held in the County Pool resulting in an audit 
adjustment of $245,573 to decrease cash and investment income.  
 
Repeat Finding from Prior Year(s):  
 
No.  
 
Cause:  
 
Management did not adequately account for the Commission’s proportionate share of the 
County’s Investment Pool fair market value loss.  
 
Effect:  
 
Without the audit adjustment identified above, the financial statements were materially 
misstated.  
 
Recommendation:  
 
We recommend that management strengthen its procedures to ensure that all financial 
activities are reflected in the financial statements.  
 



 

53 

First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 
Schedule of Findings and Responses 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 
 

Views of Responsible Officials:  
 
Management does not agree with this finding. The Commission considers the funds held in the 
County’s Investment Pool to be cash equivalents due to their highly liquid nature and therefore 
did not record the Fair Market Value Adjustment. Investment income is allocated to the 
Commission on a quarterly basis. The Fair Market Value adjustment is only an accounting entry 
because deposits and withdrawals from the County’s Investment Pool are made on the basis of 
$1 and not Fair Market Value. Going forward, the Commission will evaluate the Fair Market 
Value of the County’s Investment Pool during the year-end closing process to determine if an 
adjustment needs to be made.  



 

54 

Independent Auditor’s Report on State Compliance 
 
 
To the Board of Commissioners 
First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission 
Concord, California 
 
 
Report on Compliance Opinion 
 
We have audited the First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission’s (Commission), a 
component unit of the County of Contra Costa, California, compliance with the requirements specified in 
the State of California’s Standards and Procedures for Audits of Local Entities Administering the 
California Children and Families Act, issued by the State Controller’s Office, applicable to the 
Commission’s statutory requirements identified below for the year ended June 30, 2022. 
 
In our opinion, the Commission complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the California Children and Families 
Program for the year ended June 30, 2022. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAS), the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the State of California’s 
Standards and Procedures for Audits of Local Entities Administering the California Children and Families 
Act, issued by the State Controller’s Office. Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report. 
 
We are required to be independent of the Commission and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. Our audit 
does not provide a legal determination of the Commission’s compliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above, and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements 
of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the 
California Children and Families Program. 
 

What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebailly.com
2151 River Plaza Dr., Ste. 308  |  Sacramento, CA 95833-4133  |  T 916.570.1880  |  F 916.570.1875  |  EOE



 

55 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the material noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an 
opinion on the Commission’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the State of California’s Standards and 
Procedures for Audits of Local Entities Administering the California Children and Families Act will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood 
that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the 
report on compliance about the Commission’s compliance with the requirements of the California 
Children and Families Program as a whole. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Standards 
and Procedures for Audits of Local Entities Administering the California Children and Families Act, we: 
 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit; 
• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Commission’s compliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we 
consider necessary in the circumstances; 

• Obtain an understanding of the Commission’s internal control over compliance relevant to the 
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test 
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the State of California’s 
Standards and Procedures for Audits of Local Entities Administering the California Children and 
Families Act, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Commission’s internal controls over compliance. Accordingly, we express no such opinion; and 

• Select and test transactions and records to determine the Commission’s compliance with the 
state laws and regulations applicable to the following items: 

  
 

 Description  
Audit Guide 
Procedures 

 Procedures 
Performed 

    
Contracting and Procurement 6  Yes 
Administrative Costs 3  Yes 
Conflict-of-Interest 3  Yes 
County Ordinance 4  Yes 
Long-range Financial Plans 2  Yes 
Financial Condition of the Commission 1  Yes 
Program Evaluation 3  Yes 
Salaries and Benefits Policies 2  Yes 

  



56 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in 
internal control over compliance that we identify during the audit. 

Internal Control over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance on a timely basis. A material 
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material noncompliance with a 
compliance requirement will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control over compliance that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over 
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention from those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the State of 
California’s Standards and Procedures for Audits of Local Entities Administering the California Children 
and Families Act. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Sacramento, California 
November 10, 2022 



 
 
 
 

November 14, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 7.0 
 

Annual Report to First 5 California for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 
(a) Public Hearing on the First 5 Contra Costa’s Annual Report for FY 

2021-2022 
(b) Adopt the Annual Report to First 5 California for FY 2021-2022 

 
 
 





 
 

   

Staff Report 
November 14, 2022 

ACTION:  
  

DISCUSSION:   
 
TITLE: FIRST 5 California Annual Report Fiscal Year 2021-22 
 
Background: 
On an annual basis, each county First 5 is required to provide a summary of revenues, 
expenditures, and populations served for the fiscal year to First 5 California in the form 
of the Annual Report. The county Annual Reports inform a statewide summary of 
counties provided by First 5 California as required by the California Children and 
Families Act.  
 
The Annual Report presented pertains to the fiscal year period of July 1, 2021 – June 
30, 2022. Annual Report expenditures and counts of children, caregivers, and 
providers served are organized into Result Areas and Service Categories defined by 
First 5 California. Result Areas include Improved Family Functioning, Improved Child 
Development, Improved Child Health, and Improved Systems of Care. First 5 Contra 
Costa initiatives and programs are aligned with Result Areas and Service Categories, 
and the alignment is further described in the Annual Report packet. The Annual Report 
is comprised of three sections, AR-1, AR-2, and AR-3:  

 Annual Report AR-1 includes a First 5 Contra Costa Revenue and Expenditure 
Summary that demonstrates the relationship between financial resources and 
services.  

 Annual Report AR-2 consists of an overview of demographic information on 
race/ethnicity and primary language spoken in the home for populations served 
by First 5 Contra Costa.  

 Annual Report AR-3 contains a summary of evaluation activities and county 
highlights, which are published in First 5 California’s Annual Report.  

 
Recommendation: 
ADOPT the presented Annual Report for FY 2021-22 to be submitted to F5 California 
on November 21, 2022 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
The Annual Report demonstrates the fiscal impact of First 5 Contra Costa’s 
investments based on the expenditures and revenue for the fiscal year. There is no 
fiscal impact contingent on this report.  
 
Consequence of Negative Action: 
First 5 Contra Costa would fail to comply with state reporting mandates and would 
need to revise the Annual Report and resubmit to the Commission for adoption before 
submitting the report to First 5 California. 









































 
 
 
 

November 14, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 8.0 
 

Communications 
- EdSource Published Op-Ed: Inflation Reduction Act Left 

Children and Families Behind  
Co-authored by Dr. Ruth Fernández, Executive Director, First 5 
Contra Costa and Dr. Savitha Moorthy, Executive Director at 
Tandem Partners in Early Learning. 

 
 
 





11/8/22, 2:59 PM Inflation Reduction Act left children and families behind  | EdSource

https://edsource.org/2022/the-inflation-reduction-act-left-children-and-families-behind/680915 1/3

Inflation Reduction Act left children and families behind 

NOVEMBER 7, 2022 | RUTH FERNÁNDEZ AND SAVITHA MOORTHY

T he Inflation Reduction Act of 2022 makes major strides to address the urgent climate

crisis and address soaring inflation.

However, through the process of congressional compromise and political give and take, an

important group of Americans was lost in the text of the final legislation: young children and

their parents and caregivers. Though it was originally included in the Build Back BetterBuild Back BetterBuild Back BetterBuild Back BetterBuild Back Better

legislation, funding for child care was eliminated from the final reconciliation package.

Rising costs, the impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic and demand that exceeds supply have

frayed an already fragile child care sector. Although access to safe, affordable child care is

essential infrastructure that impacts all Americans, regardless of whether they have young

PHOTO COURTESY OF COMPASS FAMILY SERVICES

HIGHLIGHTING STRATEGIES FOR STUDENT SUCCESS

https://www.whitehouse.gov/build-back-better/
https://edsource.org/


11/8/22, 2:59 PM Inflation Reduction Act left children and families behind  | EdSource

https://edsource.org/2022/the-inflation-reduction-act-left-children-and-families-behind/680915 2/3

children, the existing federal and state early learning and care programs only reach a fractiononly reach a fractiononly reach a fractiononly reach a fractiononly reach a fraction

of income-eligible familiesof income-eligible familiesof income-eligible familiesof income-eligible familiesof income-eligible families. In the meantime, child care providers continue to be

underfunded and understaffed, and there is no clear plan to address systemic barriers that

limit families’ access to high-quality care.

Despite the challenging economic climate, the United States must invest in child care now.

Families are struggling with the cost of food, rent and gas. They can’t afford the high cost of

child care, either. Child care costs amount to nearly 10% of the average family income10% of the average family income10% of the average family income10% of the average family income10% of the average family income, or

40% higher than what the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services defines as

affordable. Lower-income families spend an even higher percentage of their income on child

care.

This isn’t a new problem. Historically, the federal government has never adequately funded

early learning and care. According to the Office of Economic Cooperation and Development,

the United States ranks third to lastthe United States ranks third to lastthe United States ranks third to lastthe United States ranks third to lastthe United States ranks third to last (ahead of only Cyprus and Turkey) when it comes to the

percentage of gross domestic product public spending for families and young children. We

came close to a national child care plan in 1971 with the Comprehensive Child DevelopmentComprehensive Child DevelopmentComprehensive Child DevelopmentComprehensive Child DevelopmentComprehensive Child Development

ActActActActAct that would have created publicly funded child care centers across the country, but

President Richard Nixon vetoed it. Even though there is strong bipartisan support for childstrong bipartisan support for childstrong bipartisan support for childstrong bipartisan support for childstrong bipartisan support for child

carecarecarecarecare among voters and legislative leaders, passing universal child care has not been a priority

for Congress.

The Covid-19 pandemic exposed the fragile nature of the infrastructure that supports

children and families in the United States. As many families experienced during the

pandemic, child care programs and schools were closed for months. The hardship on parents

and children was immeasurable. Parents at every economic level were without child care and

unable to work, leading to lost wages and financial struggle. Children also suffered greatly

throughout the pandemic without access to in-person learning and social interaction with

their peers.

Quality care ensures that children receive critical academic and socio-emotional supportcritical academic and socio-emotional supportcritical academic and socio-emotional supportcritical academic and socio-emotional supportcritical academic and socio-emotional support in

their early years and that they arrive in kindergarten ready to learn. It also results in a better-better-better-better-better-

prepared workforce, a more stable society and a country that is well-positioned to compete inprepared workforce, a more stable society and a country that is well-positioned to compete inprepared workforce, a more stable society and a country that is well-positioned to compete inprepared workforce, a more stable society and a country that is well-positioned to compete inprepared workforce, a more stable society and a country that is well-positioned to compete in

a global economy.a global economy.a global economy.a global economy.a global economy. With adequate child care, more parents — especially mothers — will

https://www.ffyf.org/2022-state-fact-sheets/
https://www.americanprogress.org/article/working-families-spending-big-money-child-care/
https://www.oecd.org/els/soc/PF3_1_Public_spending_on_childcare_and_early_education.pdf
https://www.nytimes.com/1971/12/10/archives/president-vetoes-child-care-plan-as-irresponsible-he-terms-bill.html
https://www.ffyf.org/why-it-matters/political-demand/polling/march-2022-poll/
https://www.tandfonline.com/doi/abs/10.1080/10409289.2019.1624146
https://www.americanprogress.org/article/examining-the-powerful-impact-of-investments-in-early-childhood-for-children-families-and-our-nations-economy/


11/8/22, 2:59 PM Inflation Reduction Act left children and families behind  | EdSource

https://edsource.org/2022/the-inflation-reduction-act-left-children-and-families-behind/680915 3/3

We welcome your comments. All comments are moderated for civility, relevance and other

considerations. Click here for EdSource's Comments Policy.

return to work, expanding the workforce and contributing to a thriving economy. All

Americans have a stake in this.

President Joe Biden originally proposed $400 billion for early child care and preschool in

Build Back Better. We call on the Biden administration and Congress to pick up where the

Inflation Reduction Act left off.

Fund early childhood education and child care facilities for American families as Build Back

Better originally intended. Investing in child care as infrastructure is a national imperative

given its potential to improve child development and health, women’s employment, business

productivity and overall economic growth. Prioritizing our young children is an investment

in our future.

•••

Ruth Fernández, who has a doctorate in education, is the executive director of First 5 ContraFirst 5 ContraFirst 5 ContraFirst 5 ContraFirst 5 Contra

CostaCostaCostaCostaCosta, which helps young children in Contra Costa, California, start school healthy, nurtured

and ready to learn. Savitha Moorthy, who also holds a doctorate, is the executive director of

Tandem, Partners in Early LearningTandem, Partners in Early LearningTandem, Partners in Early LearningTandem, Partners in Early LearningTandem, Partners in Early Learning, a Bay Area nonprofit working at the intersection of social

justice and early childhood education.

The opinions in this commentary are those of the authors. If you would like to submit a

commentary, please review our guidelinesguidelinesguidelinesguidelinesguidelines and  contact uscontact uscontact uscontact uscontact us.

Do you count on EdSource’s reporting daily? Make your donation todayMake your donation todayMake your donation todayMake your donation todayMake your donation today to our year end

fundraising campaign by Dec. 31st to keep us going without a paywall or ads.

 Comments

Comments Policy

http://edsource.org/?page_id=81595
http://www.first5coco.org/
https://www.tandembayarea.org/
http://edsource.org/?p=70254
mailto:spatel@edsource.org
https://donate.edsource.org/campaign/donate-today-to-support-edsource/c435268

	Blank Page
	03.0 Approve minutes Special October 17, 2022 Commission Meeting.pdf
	November 14, 2022
	Agenda Item 3.0
	Approve the minutes from the Special October 17, 2022 Commission Meeting


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	04.3 Accept the 4th Quarter Financial Report FY 2021-2022.pdf
	November 14, 2022
	Agenda Item 4.3
	Accept the 4th Quarter Financial Report of FY 2021-2022


	Blank Page
	04.4 Accept October Program Reports.pdf
	November 14, 2022
	Agenda Item 4.4
	Accept the First 5 Contra Costa October 2022 Program Reports


	Blank Page
	Program Updates_October_2022.pdf
	Community Engagement Program
	Early Intervention
	Family Economic Security Partnership
	Family Support
	Early Childhood Education

	Blank Page
	04.5 Reolution 54953 e.pdf
	November 14, 2022
	Agenda Item 4.5
	Consider adopting a resolution authorizing First 5 Contra Costa to conduct teleconference meetings pursuant to Government Code section 54953 (e) and make related findings.


	Blank Page
	06.0 Consider accepting FY 21-22 Financial Audit.pdf
	November 14, 2022
	Agenda Item 6.0
	Consider accepting the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Financial Audit


	Blank Page
	07.0 Annual Report.pdf
	November 14, 2022
	Agenda Item 7.0
	Annual Report to First 5 California for Fiscal Year 2021-2022


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	08.0 Communications.pdf
	November 14, 2022
	Agenda Item 8.0
	Communications


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	End of Year Financial Report_Q4_FY21.22_final.pdf
	Q4 FY 21-22 Comm Rpt 

	Blank Page
	First 5 Contra Costa 2022 Final Governance Letter.pdf
	Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit under Generally Accepted Auditing Standards and Government Auditing Standards
	Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit
	We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to you.
	Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence
	The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, our firm, and other firms utilized in the engagement, if applicable, have complied with all relevant ethical requirements regarding independence.
	Significant Risks Identified
	Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices
	Significant Accounting Policies
	The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are related to the net pension asset and the net other postemployment benefits (OPEB) liability.
	Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit
	Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements
	Disagreements with Management
	Circumstances that Affect the Form and Content of the Auditor’s Report
	Representations Requested from Management
	Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants
	Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues




